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(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)
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Vodafone House, The Connection, Newbury, Berkshire RG14 2FN, England
(Address of principal executive offices)
Rosemary Martin (Group General Counsel and Company Secretary)
tel +44 (0) 1635 33251, fax +44 (0) 1635 580 857
Vodafone House, The Connection, Newbury, Berkshire RG14 2FN, England
(Name, Telephone, E-mail and/or Facsimile number and Address of Company Contact Person)

Securities registered or to be registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Name of each exchange

Title of each class on which registered
See Schedule A See Schedule A
Securities registered or to be registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

None
Securities for which there is a reporting obligation pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act:
None

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of each of the issuer s classes of capital or common stock as of the close of the period covered by the
annual report.

Ordinary Shares of 20 20/21 US cents each 26,439,960,221
7% Cumulative Fixed Rate Shares of £1 each 50,000
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

Yes p No ~

If this report is an annual or transition report, indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Yes © No p

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days:
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Yes p No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes © No ~

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of
accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer p Accelerated filer ~ Non-accelerated filer ~
Indicate by check mark which basis of accounting the registrant has used to prepare the financial statements included in this filing:

US GAAP ~ International Financial Reporting b Other ~
Standards as issued by the
International Accounting
Standards Board
If Other has been checked in response to the previous question, indicate by check mark which financial statement item the registrant has elected
to follow

Item 17 © Item 18 ~

If this is an annual report, indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes © No p
SCHEDULE A
Name of each exchange
Title of each class on which registered

Ordinary shares of 20 20/2] US cents each NASDAQ Global Select Market”
American Depositary Shares (evidenced by American Depositary NASDAQ Global Select Market
Receipts) each representing ten ordinary shares

Floating rate Notes due February 2016 New York Stock Exchange
5.625% Notes due February 2017 New York Stock Exchange
1.625% Notes due March 2017 New York Stock Exchange
1.25% Notes due September 2017 New York Stock Exchange
1.5% Notes due February 2018 New York Stock Exchange
4.625% Notes due July 2018 New York Stock Exchange
5.450% Notes due June 2019 New York Stock Exchange
4.375% Notes due March 2021 New York Stock Exchange
2.5% Notes due September 2022 New York Stock Exchange
2.95% Notes due February 2023 New York Stock Exchange
2.95% Notes due February 2023 New York Stock Exchange
7.875% Notes due February 2030 New York Stock Exchange
6.25% Notes due November 2032 New York Stock Exchange
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6.15% Notes due February 2037 New York Stock Exchange
4.375% Notes due February 2043 New York Stock Exchange

* Listed, not for trading, but only in connection with the registration of American Depositary Shares, pursuant to the requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Forward-looking statements

This constitutes the annual report on Form 20-F of Vodafone Group Plc (the Company ) in accordance with the
requirements of the US Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC ) for the year ended 31 March 2014 and
is dated 10 June 2014. This document contains certain information set out within the Company s annual report
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) and with those parts of the UK
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, dated 20 May 2014, as updated or
supplemented if necessary. The content of the Group s website (www.vodafone.com) should not be considered to
form part of this annual report on Form 20-F.

Unless otherwise stated references to year or 2014 mean the financial year ended 31 March 2014, to 2013 or
previous year mean the financial year ended 31 March 2013, and to the fourth quarter or Q4 are to the quarter
ended 31 March 2014. For other references please refer to page 45.

All amounts marked with an * represent organic growth, which excludes the impact of foreign currency

movements, acquisitions and disposals and certain other items, see definition on page 212. Definitions of terms
used throughout the report can be found on pages 211 and 212.
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The terms Vodafone ,the Group , we
interests in joint ventures and associates.

, our and us refer to the Company and, as applicable, its subsidiaries and/or

Website references are for information only and are not incorporated by reference into our Annual Report on Form
20-F.
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Chief Financial Officer s review

Our financial performance
was mixed

Our financial performance reflects continued strong growth in our emerging markets, partly offsetting competitive,
regulatory and macroeconomic pressures in Europe. While we have seen declines in our revenue and adjusted
EBITDA, we have met our financial guidance and increased the dividend per share.

Overall performance

The Group s emerging markets businesses have delivered strong organic growth this year, combining good local
execution on marketing and distribution with leading network quality. In particular, data usage in emerging markets is
really taking off, providing further growth potential for the Group. This has however been offset by significant
ongoing pressures in our European operations, from a combination of a weak macroeconomic environment, regulatory
headwinds, and stiff competition. We experienced revenue declines in all of our major European markets, and related
pressure on margins, despite continuing measures to control costs.

Group revenue increased by 0.8% to £38.3 billion, with service revenue of £35.2 billion, an increase of 0.5%.

Group adjusted EBITDA decreased by 3.3% to £11.1 billion as the impact of steep revenue declines in Europe offset
improving margins in AMAP, notably in India and Australia.

Group adjusted operating profit fell 22.9% year-on-year to £4.3 billion due to lower adjusted EBITDA and higher
amortisation and depreciation due principally to the acquisition of KDG in October 2013.

Verizon Wireless

The profit contribution of Verizon Wireless is reported in our 2014 financial year results for five months to

2 September 2013, the date we announced its sale. Our share of Verizon Wireless profits for this five month period
amounted to £3.2 billion. The sale of the US group, whose principal asset was Verizon Wireless, led to a pre-tax gain

on disposal of £45.0 billion.
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Impairment losses

We recorded impairment charges of £6.6 billion relating to our businesses in Germany, Spain, Portugal, Czech
Republic and Romania. These were driven by lower projected cash flows within business plans, resulting from the
tougher macroeconomic environment and heavy price competition.

Financing costs and taxation

Net financing costs have decreased 6.4% primarily due to the recognition of mark-to-market gains, offset by a

£99 million loss (2013: £nil) on the redemption of US$5.65 billion bonds as part of the restructuring of the Group s
financing arrangements following the disposal of Verizon Wireless and lower interest income on settlement of tax
issues.

The statutory effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2014 was -33.4% compared to 77.2% in the prior year.
The difference is primarily due to the gain on disposal of our interest in Verizon Wireless which did not result in any
tax consequences and the recognition of significant deferred tax assets in Luxembourg and Germany.

Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share! fell 12.8% to 17.54 pence, driven by lower adjusted operating profit, offset by a lower
share count arising from the Group s share buyback programme. The Board is recommending a final dividend per
share of 7.47 pence, to give total ordinary dividends per share for the year of 11.0 pence, up 8% year-on-year.

Free cash flow

Free cash flow was £4.2 billion, down 24.0% from the prior year. The year-on-year decline reflects the relative
strength of sterling against the South African rand and Indian rupee over the course of the year, partly offset by
movements in the euro, as well as tough trading conditions. In addition to the free cash flow reported above, we
received an income dividend of £2.1 billion from Verizon Wireless.

Capital expenditure
Capital expenditure increased 19.3% to £6.3 billion, with the growth driven by the inclusion of CWW for 12 months,
the inclusion of KDG from October 2013, the commencement of our fibre roll-out in Spain, and initial Project Spring

investments in Germany and India. In addition, we acquired and renewed spectrum for £2.2 billion in India, Romania,
New Zealand and the Czech Republic, with a cash cost of £0.9 billion during the year.
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Group!

Revenue

Service revenue

Other revenue

Adjusted EBITDA?

Adjusted operating profit?

Impairment loss

Restructuring costs and other

Amortisation of acquired customer bases and brand intangible assets
Other income/(expense)

Operating loss

Non-operating income and expense

Net financing costs

Income tax credit/(expense)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year from continuing operations
Profit for the financial year from discontinued operations
Profit for the financial year

Notes:

2014

£m
38,346
35,190
3,156
11,084
4,310
(6,600)
(355)
(551)
(717)
(3,913)
(149)
(1,208)
16,582
11,312
48,108
59,420

39

Restated!
2013

£m
38,041
34,999
3,042
11,466
5,590
(7,700)
(311)
(249)
468
(2,202)
10
(1,291)
(476)
(3,959)
4,616
657

1 2014 results reflect average foreign exchange rates of £1: 1.19 and £1:US$1.59 (2013: £1: 1.23 and £1:US$1.58).
2 Adjusted EBITDA and adjusted operating profit have been restated to exclude restructuring costs . Adjusted
operating profit has also been redefined to exclude amortisation of customer base and brand intangible assets. See

page 201 for Non-GAAP financial information .

Net debt

Net debt decreased £11.7 billion to £13.7 billion as proceeds from the disposal of our US group, whose principal asset
was its 45% stake in Verizon Wireless, positive free cash flow and favourable foreign exchange movements more than
offset the acquisition of Kabel Deutschland, licences and spectrum payments and equity shareholder returns including

equity dividends, the special distribution and share buybacks. In Q4, we paid £2.4 billion in relation to the expected
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tax liability for the Verizon Wireless transaction, of which US$3.3 billion (£2.0 billion) was paid to Verizon. We now
expect this liability to total US$3.6 billion (£2.2 billion).

Performance against 2014 financial year guidance?

On 2 September 2013 we issued pro forma guidance for the 2014 financial year, which excluded VZW and included
100% of Vodafone Italy, both for the whole year. This pro forma guidance included Vodafone s remaining joint
ventures (Australia, Fiji and Indus Towers), on an equity accounting basis, consistent with IFRS requirements.
Based on guidance foreign exchange rates, our pro forma adjusted operating profit for the 2014 financial year was
£4.9 billion?, in line with the around £5.0 billion range set in September 2013. On the same basis our pro forma free

cash flow was £4.8 billion?, in line with our guidance range of £4.5 £5.0 billion.

2015 financial year guidance?

Adjusted EBITDA Free cash flow
£bn £bn
2015 financial year guidance 114 11.9 Positive

We expect adjusted EBITDA to be in the range of £11.4 billion to £11.9 billion.

We expect free cash flow to be positive after all capex, before the impact of M&A, spectrum purchases and
restructuring costs. Total capex over the next two years is expected to be around £19 billion, after which we anticipate
capital intensity normalising to a level of 13 14% of annual revenue.

/s/ Nick Read
Nick Read

Chief Financial Officer

Notes:

* All amounts in this document marked with an * represent organic growth which presents performance on a
comparable basis, both in terms of merger and acquisition activity and movements in foreign exchange rates. See
page 202 Non-GAAP financial information for further details.

1 Please see page 201 for Non-GAAP financial information .

2 Guidance foreign exchange rates for the year ended 31 March 2014 were £1: 1.17, £1=US$1.52, £1:INR 84.9 and
£1:ZAR 14.3.

3 We have based guidance for the 2015 financial year on our current assessment of the global macroeconomic
outlook and assume foreign exchange rates of £1: 1.21, £1:INR 105.8 and £1:ZAR 18.4. It excludes the impact of
licences and spectrum purchases, material one-off tax-related payments, restructuring costs and any fundamental
structural change to the Eurozone. It also assumes no material change to the current structure of the Group. Actual
foreign exchange rates may vary from the foreign exchange rate assumptions used. A 1% change in the euro to
sterling exchange rate would impact adjusted EBITDA by £60 million and have no material impact on free cash
flow. A 1% change in the Indian rupee to sterling exchange rate would impact adjusted EBITDA by £10 million
and free cash flow by £5 million. A 1% change in the South African Rand to sterling exchange rate would impact
adjusted EBITDA by £15 million and free cash flow by £5 million. Guidance for the year ending 31 March 2015
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includes the results of Vodafone s remaining joint ventures (Australia, Fiji and Indus Towers) on an equity basis,
consistent with IFRS requirements.
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Operating results

This section presents our operating performance, providing commentary on how revenue and adjusted EBITDA
performance of the Group and its operating segments within the Europe and AMAP regions, together with Common
Functions, have developed over the last year. These revenue and adjusted EBITDA amounts are extracted from note 2
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. See pages 171 to 175 for commentary on the 2013 financial year. The
presentation of segmental revenues and adjusted EBITDA within note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
segment is under the management basis as this is assessed as being the most insightful presentation and is how the
Group s operating performance is reviewed internally by management. See  Non-GAAP information on page 201 for
further information on the use of management basis measures and reconciliations between the management basis
measures and the statutory (IFRS) basis.

Group level operating performance is discussed on pages 38, 39 and 97.

Europe on a management basis

Restated
Germany Italy UK Spddther Eulipminations  Europe 2013 % change
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £ Organic
Year ended 31
March 2014
Revenue 8,272 4,312 6,427 3,518 5,525 (57) 27,997 28,602 (2.1) (9.3
Service revenue 7,739 3,863 6,095 3,230 5,104 (54) 25977 26,501 2.00 ©O.1
Other revenue 533 449 332 288 421 3) 2,020 2,101 (3.9 (10.8)
Adjusted
EBITDA 2,698 1,536 1,418 787 1,736 8,175 9,099 (10.2) (18.3)
Adjusted
EBITDA margin  32.6%  35.6% 22.1% 22.4% 31.4% 29.2% 31.8%
Foreign
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Organic
change
%
Revenue Europe 9.3)

Service revenue

Germany (6.2)
Italy (17.1)
UK 4.4)
Spain (13.4)
Other Europe (7.1)
Europe 9.1)
Adjusted

EBITDA

Germany (18.2)
Italy (24.9)
UK (9.8)
Spain (23.9)
Other Europe (14.0)
Europe (18.3)
Note:

Other
activity!

pps
4.7

9.0
2.2
31.9
(0.7)
(17.5)
4.6

10.2
2.2
26.9
(1.8)
(6.2)
5.6

exchange
pps

2.5

3.6
3.1

3.1
1.8
2.5

33
2.8
0.1
2.8
2.1
2.5

Reported
change
%

2.1)

6.4
(11.8)
27.5
(11.0)
(22.8)

(2.0)

4.7
(19.9)
17.2
(22.9)
(18.1)
(10.2)

1 Other activity includes the impact of M&A activity and the
revision to intra-group roaming charges from 1 April 2013. Refer
to Organic growth on page 202 for further detail.
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Germany

Service revenue decreased 6.2%*, with a slightly improving trend in Q4 compared to Q3. Performance for the year
was driven by intense price competition in both the consumer and enterprise segments and an MTR cut effective from
December 2012, with Vodafone particularly impacted due to our traditionally high ARPU. In a more competitive
environment we launched both a more aggressive 3G price plan ( Smart ) and pushed otelo in the entry-level contract
segment. Mobile in-bundle revenue increased 2.7%* as a result of growth in integrated Vodafone Red offers, which
was more than offset by a decline in mobile out-of-bundle revenue of 22.6%*. We continue to focus on Vodafone Red
and 4G where we had nearly 3.0 million customers and 891,000 consumer contract customers respectively at 31
March 2014.

Adjusted EBITDA declined 18.2%*, with a 4.3* percentage point decline in adjusted EBITDA margin, driven by
lower service revenue and increased customer investment.

The roll-out of 4G services continued with a focus on urban areas, with overall outdoor population coverage of 70% at
31 March 2014, which combined with our ongoing network enhancement plan has resulted in a significant
improvement in voice and data performance in the second half of the year.

Following its acquisition on 14 October 2013, KDG contributed £702 million to service revenue and £297 million to
adjusted EBITDA in Germany. The domination and profit and loss transfer agreement was registered on 14 March
2014 and the integration of Vodafone Germany and KDG began on 1 April 2014.

Italy

Service revenue declined 17.1%%* driven by the effect of the summer prepaid price war penetrating the customer base
and the negative impact of MTR cuts effective from January and July 2013. Mobile in-bundle revenue grew

15.2%* driven by the take-up of integrated prepaid plans. Vodafone Red, which had nearly 1.5 million customers at
31 March 2014, continues to penetrate further into the base leading to improving churn in the contract segment.

Enterprise revenue growth, while still negative, showed signs of improvement during the year thanks to the success of
Zero . Prepaid experienced a steep ARPU decline as a result of the market move to aggressive bundled offers. 4G
services are now available in 202 municipalities and outdoor coverage has reached 35%.

Fixed line revenue declined 3.2%%* as a result of declining fixed voice usage, partly offset by continued broadband
revenue growth supported by 77,000 net broadband customer additions during the year. Vodafone Italy now offers
fibre services in 37 cities and is progressing well on its own fibre build plans.

Adjusted EBITDA declined 24.9%*, with a 4.8* percentage point decline in adjusted EBITDA margin, primarily
driven by the lower revenue, partially offset by strong efficiency improvements delivered on operating costs which
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UK

Service revenue decreased 4.4%*, principally driven by declines in enterprise and prepaid and a 1.9 percentage point
impact from MTR cuts, partially offset by consumer contract service revenue growth. Mobile in-bundle revenue
increased 0.6%* as the positive impact of contract customer growth and greater penetration of Vodafone Red plans
into the customer base, with nearly 2.7 million customers at 31 March 2014, offset pricing pressures. Mobile
out-of-bundle revenue declined 7.2%%*, primarily driven by lower prepaid revenue.

The activity to integrate the UK operations of CWW was accelerated successfully and we continue to deliver cash and
capex synergies as planned. The sales pipeline is now growing, which we expect to materialise into revenue increases
in the 2015 financial year.

The roll-out of 4G services continued following the launch in August 2013, with services now available in 14 cities
and over 200 towns, with over 637,000 4G enabled plans (including Mobile Broadband) at 31 March 2014. We are
making significant progress in network performance, particularly in the London area.

Adjusted EBITDA declined 9.8%%*, driven by lower revenue and a 1.0* percentage point decline in the adjusted
EBITDA margin as a result of higher customer investment.

Spain

Service revenue declined 13.4%%*, as a result of intense convergence price competition, macroeconomic price pressure
in enterprise and a MTR cut in July 2013. Service revenue trends began to improve towards the end of the year. As a
result of a stronger commercial performance and lower customer churn from an improved customer experience, the
contract customer base decline slowed during the year and the enterprise customer base remained broadly stable.
Mobile in-bundle revenue declined 0.4%* driven by the higher take-up of Vodafone Red plans, which continue to
perform well, with over 1.2 million customers at 31 March 2014. We had 797,000 4G customers at 31 March 2014
and services are now available in all Spanish provinces, 227 municipalities and 80 cities.

Fixed line revenue declined 0.2%* as we added 216,000 new customers during the year and added 276,000 homes to

our joint fibre network with Orange. On 17 March 2014 we agreed to acquire Grupo Corporativo Ono, S.A. ( Ono ), the
leading cable operator in Spain and the transaction is, subject to customary terms and conditions including anti-trust
clearances by the relevant authorities, expected to complete in calendar Q3 2014.

Adjusted EBITDA declined 23.9%%*, with a 3.4* percentage point decline in adjusted EBITDA margin, primarily
driven by the lower revenue, partly offset by lower commercial costs and operating cost reductions of 9.4%%*.

Other Europe

Service revenue declined 7.1%* as price competition and MTR cuts resulted in service revenue declines of 5.6%%,
8.4%* and 14.1%%* in the Netherlands, Portugal and Greece respectively. However, Hungary and Romania returned to
growth in H2, and all other markets apart from Portugal showed an improvement in revenue declines in Q4.

In the Netherlands mobile in-bundle revenue increased by 3.4%%*, driven by the success of Vodafone Red plans. In
Portugal, the broadband customer base and fixed line revenues continued to grow as the fibre roll-out gained
momentum in a market moving strongly towards converged offers, whilst in Greece the customer base grew due to the
focus on data. In Ireland, contract growth remained good in a declining market.
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Adjusted EBITDA declined 14.0%*, with a 2.1* percentage point reduction in the adjusted EBITDA margin, driven
by lower service revenue, partly offset by operating cost efficiencies.
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Operating results (continued)

Africa, Middle East and Asia Pacific on a management basis

India VodacomOther AMAPminations
£m £m £m £m
Year ended 31 March 2014
Revenue 4,394 4,718 5,860 (D)
Service revenue 3,927 3,866 5,295 (D)
Other revenue 467 852 565
Adjusted EBITDA 1,397 1,716 1,567
Adjusted EBITDA margin 31.8% 36.4% 26.7%
Organic
change
%
Revenue AMAP 8.4
Service revenue
India 13.0
Vodacom 4.1
Other AMAP 2.8
AMAP 6.1
Adjusted EBITDA
India 26.4
Vodacom 6.6
Other AMAP 19.3
AMAP 16.2
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Restated
AMAP 2013 % change
£m £m £ Organic
14,971 15,413 (2.9) 8.4
13,087 13,729 4.7) 6.1
1,884 1,684 11.9 274
4,680 4,532 33 16.2
31.3% 29.4%
Other Foreign
activity! Reported
exchange change
pps pps %
0.7 (12.0) 2.9)
11.7) 1.3
(2.8) (13.7) (12.4)
4.0 9.4) (2.6)
0.7 (11.5) 4.7)
(13.7) 12.7
0.2 (16.1) (9.3)
32 (10.7) 11.8
1.0 (13.9) 3.3
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Notes:

1 Other activity includes the impact of M&A activity and the revision to intra-group roaming charges from 1 April
2013. Refer to Organic growth on page 202 for further detail.
India

Service revenue increased 13.0%%*, driven by continued customer growth and data usage as well as improved voice
pricing. Mobile customers increased by 14.2 million during the year, yielding a closing customer base of 166.6 million
at 31 March 2014.

Data usage grew 125% during the year, primarily resulting from a 39% increase in mobile internet users and a 67%
increase in usage per customer. At 31 March 2014 active data customers totalled 52 million including seven million
3G customers.

We progressively rolled out M-Pesa across India over the year, reaching nationwide coverage by March 2014.

Adjusted EBITDA grew 26.4%%*, with a 3.3* percentage point increase in adjusted EBITDA margin, driven by the
higher revenue and the resulting economies of scale on costs.

In February, Vodafone India successfully bid for additional spectrum in 11 telecom circles in the Indian Government s
900MHz and 1800MHz spectrum auction, enabling the company to provide customers with enhanced mobile voice
and data services across the country. Of the total £1.9 billion cost of these spectrum licences, £0.5 billion was paid
during the financial year with the remainder payable in instalments starting in 2017.

Vodacom

Service revenue grew 4.1%%*, driven by strong growth in Vodacom s mobile operations outside South Africa. In South
Africa, organic service revenue increased 0.3%%*, despite the adverse impact of an MTR cut, due to the strong growth
in data revenues of 23.5%%*, driven by higher smartphone penetration and the strong demand for prepaid bundles.

Vodacom s mobile operations outside South Africa delivered service revenue growth of

18.9%* mainly from continued customer base growth. M-Pesa continued to perform well and is now operational in all
of the Vodacom mobile operations outside of South Africa, with over 4.4 million customers actively using the service.

Adjusted EBITDA increased 6.6%%*, driven by revenue growth, optimisation in customer investment and efficiencies
in South Africa operating costs. The adjusted EBITDA margin decline of 0.3* percentage points is the result of higher
sales of lower margin handsets.

On 14 April 2014, Vodacom announced the acquisition of the Vodacom customer base from Nashua, a mobile cellular
provider for South African mobile network operators, subject to the approval of the Competition Authority.

On 19 May 2014 Vodacom announced that it had reached an agreement with the shareholders of Neotel Proprietary
Limited ( Neotel ), the second largest provider of fixed telecommunications services for both enterprise and consumers
in South Africa, to acquire 100% of the issued share capital in, and shareholder loans against, Neotel for a total cash
consideration of ZAR 7.0 billion (£0.4 billion). The transaction remains subject to the fulfilment of a number of
conditions precedent including applicable regulatory approvals and is expected to close before the end of the financial
year.
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Other AMAP

Service revenue increased 2.8%*, with growth in Turkey, Egypt, Qatar and Ghana being partially offset by declines in
Australia and New Zealand.

Service revenue growth in Turkey was 7.9%* after a 5.4 percentage point negative impact from voice and SMS MTR
cuts effective from 1 July 2013. Mobile in-bundle revenue in Turkey grew 25.0%* driven by higher smartphone
penetration, the success of Vodafone Red plans and continued growth in enterprise.

In Egypt service revenue increased 2.6%%*, driven by the growth in the customer base, higher data usage and a
successful pricing strategy. Service revenue growth in Qatar came as a result of strong net customer additions and the
success of segmented commercial offers. In Ghana, service revenue grew 19.3%%*, driven by an increase in customers
and higher data usage in both consumer and enterprise.

Adjusted EBITDA grew 19.3%* with a 3.1* percentage point improvement in adjusted EBITDA margin, with
improvements in Turkey, Australia, Qatar and Ghana driven by the increase in scale and operating cost efficiencies,
and with robust contribution from Egypt, partially offset by a decline in New Zealand.

Our joint venture in Australia experienced a service revenue decline of 9.0%*. The turnaround plan remains on track,
yielding improved levels of network performance, net promoter score and customer base management. The adjusted

EBITDA margin was improved by 14.8* percentage points, as a result of restructuring and stronger cost discipline.

Our associate in Kenya, Safaricom, increased service revenue by 17.2% driven by a higher customer base and
continued growth in M-Pesa.

Non-Controlled Interests on a management basis

Verizon Wireless!»2

2014 2013

£m £m

Revenue 9,955 21,972
Service revenue 9,000 19,697
Other revenue 955 2,275
Adjusted EBITDA 4,274 8,831
Interest (20) (25)
Tax2 (50) 13
Group s share of result in VZW 3,169 6,500
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Notes:

1 All amounts represent the Group s share based on its 45% partnership interest, unless otherwise stated. Results for
the year ended 31 March 2014 only include results to 2 September 2013, the date the Group announced its intention
to dispose of its 45% interest.

2 The Group s share of the tax attributable to VZW relates only to the corporate entities held by the VZW partnership
and certain US state taxes which are levied on the partnership. The tax attributable to the Group s share of the
partnership s pre-tax profit is included within the Group tax charge.

On 2 September 2013 Vodafone announced it had reached an agreement with Verizon Communications Inc. to

dispose of its US group whose principal asset was its 45% interest in Verizon Wireless. The Group ceased recognising

its share of results in Verizon Wireless on 2 September 2013, and classified its investment as a held for sale asset and

the results as a discontinued operation. The transaction completed on 21 February 2014.

Operating loss
Adjusted operating profit excludes certain income and expenses that we have identified separately to allow their effect
on the present results of the Group to be assessed (see page 201). The items that are included in operating loss but are

excluded from adjusted operating profit are discussed below.

Impairment losses of £6,600 million (2013: £7,700 million) recognised in respect of Germany, Spain, Portugal, Czech
Republic and Romania. Further detail is provided in note 4 to the Group s consolidated financial statements.

Restructuring costs of £355 million (2013: £311 million) have been incurred to improve future business performance
and reduce costs.

Amortisation of intangible assets in relation to customer bases and brands are recognised under accounting rules after
we acquire businesses and amounted to £551 million (2013: £249 million). Amortisation charges increased in the year

as a result of the acquisition of KDG and Vodafone Italy in the year.

Other income and expense comprises a loss of £0.7 billion arising largely from our acquisition of a controlling interest
in Vodafone Italy. The year ended 31 March 2013 includes a £0.5 billion gain on the acquisition of CWW.

Including the above items, operating loss increased to £3.9 billion from £2.2 billion as lower impairment charges were
offset by lower revenue, higher customer costs and higher amortisation.

Net financing costs

2014 2013

£m £m

Investment income 346 305
Financing costs (1,554) (1,596)
Net financing costs (1,208) (1,291)

Net financing costs have decreased 6.4% primarily due to the recognition of mark-to-market gains, offset by a £99
million loss (2013: £nil) on the redemption of US$5.65 billion bonds as part of the restructuring of the Group s
financing arrangements following the disposal of Verizon Wireless and lower interest income on settlement of tax
issues.
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Operating results (continued)
Taxation
2014 2013
£m £m
Income tax expense:
Continuing operations before recognition of deferred tax 2,736 476
Discontinued operations 1,709 1,750
Total income tax expense 4,445 2,226
Recognition of additional deferred tax continuing operations (19,318)
Total tax (credit)/expense (14,873) 2,226

The recognition of the additional deferred tax assets, which arose from losses in earlier years, was triggered by the
agreement to dispose of the US group whose principal asset was its 45% interest in VZW, which removes significant
uncertainty around both the availability of the losses in Germany and the future income streams in Luxembourg. The
Group expects to use these losses over a significant number of years; the actual use of these losses is dependent on
many factors which may change, including the level of profitability in both Germany and Luxembourg, changes in tax
law and changes to the structure of the Group.

2014 2013

£m £m

Total tax (credit)/expense (14,873) 2,226

Profit before tax

Continuing operations (5,270) (3,483)

Discontinued operations 49,817 6,366

Total profit before tax 44,547 2,883

Effective tax rate -33.4% 77.2%

The statutory effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2014 was -33.4% compared to 77.2% in the prior year.
The difference is primarily due to the gain on disposal of our interest in Verizon Wireless which did not result in any
tax consequences and the recognition of significant deferred tax assets in Luxembourg and Germany.
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Discontinued operations

On 2 September 2013 the Group announced it had reached an agreement with Verizon Communications Inc. to
dispose of its US group whose principal asset was its 45% interest in VZW. The Group ceased recognising its share of
results in VZW on 2 September 2013, and classified its investment as a held for sale asset and the results as a
discontinued operation. The transaction completed on 21 February 2014.

The table below sets out all of the elements relating to this discontinued operation within the consolidated income
statement.

2014
2013
£m £m
Share of result in associate 3,191 6,422
Net financing income/(costs) 27 (56)
Profit before taxation 3,218 6,366
Taxation relating to performance of discontinued operations (1,709) (1,750)
Post-tax profit from discontinued operations 1,509 4,616
The table below sets the gain on disposal of discontinued operations.
2014 2013
£m £m
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations before tax 44,996
Other items arising from the disposal 1,603
Net gain on disposal of discontinued operations 46,599
Profit for the financial year from discontinued operations 48,108 4,616
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We have redefined adjusted earnings per share to exclude amortisation of acquired customer base and brand-related
intangible assets, restructuring costs and one-off items in relation to both the disposal of our interest in Verizon
Wireless and the acquisition of the remaining 23% of Vodafone Italy. Comparatives have been restated consistently.

Adjusted earnings per share was 17.54 pence, a decrease of 12.8% year-on-year, reflecting lower adjusted operating
profit primarily due to the cessation of equity accounting for VZW from 2 September 2013, partially offset by a

reduction in shares in issue arising from the Group s share buyback programme.

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations increased to 42.10 pence (2013: loss of 15.66 pence) primarily

due to the recognition of the additional deferred tax assets in the current year.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Adjustments:

Impairment loss

Amortisation of acquired customer base and brand intangible assets
Restructuring costs

Other income and expense

Discontinued and other items

Non-operating income and expense

Investment income and financing costs

Taxation

Removal of VZW trading results and tax after 2 September!
Non-controlling interests

Adjusted profit attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of shares outstanding basic
Weighted average number of shares outstanding  diluted
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Statutory basis

2014

£m
59,254

6,600
551
355
717

(46,520)
149

78

(38,070)

(17,511)
1,019

(50
4,642

Million
26,472
26,682

2013

£m
413

7,700
249
311

(468)

(10)
51
7,833

(150)

(2,669)

(28)
5,399

Million
26,831
26,831
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Note:

1 The adjustment for the year ended 31 March 2014 primarily relates to the removal of tax in respect of our US group
after 2 September 2013, whereas the adjustment for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes the removal of both
profit contributions and tax for the period from 2 September 2012 to 31 March 2013.

Section 219 SEC filings of interest

Vodafone Group Plc ( Vodafone ) does not have any subsidiaries, other equity investments, assets, facilities or
employees located in Iran, and Vodafone has made no capital investment in Iran. To the best of its knowledge, no US
persons, including any US affiliates of Vodafone, are involved in the activities described below. Except as specified
below, Vodafone does not believe that it has provided any products, equipment, software, technology, information,
support or services into Iran, directly or indirectly, or had any agreements, arrangements or other contacts with the
government of Iran or entities controlled by the government of Iran.

Roaming and interconnect

Vodafone has wholesale roaming and interconnect arrangements with mobile and fixed line operators in Iran.
Vodafone has, or has had, relationships with telecommunications operators in Iran in connection with such roaming
and interconnect arrangements, some of which it believes are or may be government controlled entities. The
approximate total gross revenues attributable to the arrangements mentioned above for the financial year ended

31 March 2014 were £992,000.

Contract between Vodafone Global Enterprise ( VGE ) and Deutsche Post DHL ( DHL )

VGE, a Vodafone division which serves multi-national corporate customers, had a contract with DHL to provide DHL
with a managed Multi-Protocol Label Switching data network in a total of 67 countries across Eastern Europe, Africa
and the Middle East. On 31 January 2013, Vodafone terminated all telecommunications commitments towards DHL
in respect of Iran under this contract and there were no further revenues or profits attributable to this contract for the
financial year ended 31 March 2014.

EPEG Project

On 27 July 2012, Vodafone acquired Cable & Wireless Worldwide Plc ( CWW ), which (through a subsidiary) is
member of a consortium made up of Telecommunication Infrastructure Company of Iran ( TIC ) (an entity controlled
by the government of Iran), Rostelecom and Omantel that is building a high speed cable network from a landing point
in Oman, to Germany. Each member of the consortium is responsible for funding, building and maintaining its section
of the cable, with CWW owning and being responsible for the segment from the Ukrainian border with Russia to
Frankfurt, Germany. No capacity sales have been made on this high speed cable network yet; consequently there are
no revenues or profits associated with the project.

Intellectual Property
Vodafone, through one of its subsidiaries, also makes some insignificant payments to Iran in order to register certain
domain names, register and renew certain trademarks, and protect its brand globally. Vodafone paid annual

registration fees of £48 to IRNIC for the registration of three domain names. Vodafone did not make any payments to
Iran in order to register or renew any of its trade marks during the fiscal year ended 31 March 2014.
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References to Q4 are to the quarter ended 31 March 2014
unless otherwise stated. References to the second half of the
year are to the six months ended 31 March 2014 unless
otherwise stated. References to the year or financial year are
to the financial year ended 31 March 2014 and references to
the prior financial year are to the financial year ended
31 March 2013 unless otherwise stated. References to the

2014 financial year , 2015 financial year , 2016 financial
year , 2017 financial year and the 2019 financial year are to
the financial years ending 31 March 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017
and 2019, respectively. References to calendar Q3 2014 are
to the quarter ended 30 September 2014, unless otherwise
stated.
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Key risks

Network or IT systems failure

Major failure or malicious attack on our network or IT systems may result in service interruption and consequential
customer and revenue loss.

Failure to protect customer information

We host increasing quantities and types of customer data in both enterprise and consumer segments and any failure to
protect data adequately could affect our reputation and lead to legal action.

Competition

We face intensifying competition where all operators are looking to secure a share of the potential customer base,
leading to lower future revenues and profitability.

Regulation

We need to comply with an extensive range of regulatory requirements including the licensing, construction and
operation of our networks and services that can lead to adverse impacts on our business.

Converged and over-the-top OTT services
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Some competitors offer converged services which we cannot either replicate or provide at a similar price point.
Furthermore, advances in smartphone technology place more focus on applications, operating systems and devices
rather than the services provided by operators, which could erode revenues.

Weak economic conditions
Economic conditions in many markets, especially in Europe, continue to stagnate or show nominal levels of growth

and remain impacted by austerity measures which could affect disposable incomes. This may result in customers
moving to lower price plans or giving up their phones.

Health risks
Concerns have been expressed that the electromagnetic signals emitted by mobile handsets and base stations may pose
health risks. Authorities including the World Health Organization ( WHO ) agree there is no evidence that convinces

experts that exposure to radiofrequency fields from mobile devices and base stations operated within guideline limits
has any adverse health effects.

Integration of acquired businesses

The price paid for acquired businesses is based upon current and future expected cash flows that are expected to be
generated from benefits and synergies that being part of the Vodafone Group will generate.

Key suppliers

We depend on a limited number of suppliers for strategically important network and IT infrastructure and associated
support services to operate and upgrade our networks and provide key services to our customers.

Tax disputes
We operate in many jurisdictions around the world and from time to time have disputes on the amount of tax due,

including an ongoing tax case in India where the Indian Government has introduced retrospective legislation that
overturns a positive India Supreme Court decision.

Impairment assumptions

Revisions to the assumptions used in assessing the recoverability of goodwill, including discount rates, estimated
future cash flows or anticipated changes in operations, could lead to the impairment of certain Group assets.
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Businesses must ensure
absolute integrity in their business
activities and decision-making
processes if they are to earn and

retain public trust.
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Dear shareholder

Effective corporate governance is integral to the successful delivery
of business goals: for our many and diverse stakeholders, how we
work is as important as what we do. Vodafone operates under a
well-developed governance framework designed to foster
transparency, honesty and an informed approach to risk management
across our worldwide business. We have clear standards of behaviour
we expect from everyone who works for Vodafone: further details of
our mandatory Code of Conduct are set out on page 67.

The Board s role is to set the strategy for the Group, appoint the right
leadership and ensure consistent implementation whilst monitoring
business performance and ensuring the timely and effective
assessment and management of business risk. Our goal is to build an
enduring and profitable Vodafone business admired by customers and
other stakeholders, whilst achieving strong returns for our
shareholders. As I explain in my statement on page 2, this was a
significant year for Vodafone, and your Board played a leading role in
the conduct of the major transactions described in the Chief
Executive s review on page 12. As the Group s strategy continues to
evolve, the Board is focused on maintaining a strong alignment of the
interests of management with long-term value creation. Central to this
is our remuneration policy (explained on page 71) which for the first
time will be put to a shareholder vote at our annual general meeting
this year, in line with new regulations.

There were a number of changes to the Board during the year. Andy
Halford has retired from the role of Group Chief Financial Officer
after eight years, during which period he developed a track record of
value creation for shareholders which few, if any, CFOs could hope to
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match. Andy has been succeeded by the Chief Executive of the
AMAP region, Nick Read, under whose leadership our emerging
markets businesses have achieved strong rates of growth. In March
2014, it was announced that Anne Lauvergeon intended to stand
down from the Board; Alan Jebson and Anthony Watson have also
informed the Board they will not seek re-election at the annual
general meeting. On behalf of the Board, I would like to express our
gratitude to Andy, Anne, Alan and Tony for their contribution to
Vodafone and wish them well for the future. Valerie Gooding joined
the Board as a non-executive director in February 2014, and in May
2014 we announced that Sir Crispin Davis will join the Board on

28 July and Dame Clara Furse on 1 September, both as non-executive
directors. I am delighted to welcome Valerie, Sir Crispin and Dame
Clara to the Board.

I am fortunate as Chairman to be able to call on a broad and diverse
range of skills and perspectives around the boardroom table. In their
new composition, our Board consists of 13 Directors, drawn from six
different nationalities with international leadership experience across
more than ten different industrial sectors. With three female directors,
I am pleased to say that from September we will be well on our way
to achieving our intention that women will hold 25% of Board roles
by the end of 2015. The recruitment of further female directors will
continue to be a priority in future.

Whilst your Board is confident that Vodafone is well-placed to
continue to reward shareholders for their support for our strategy, we
expect operating conditions to remain challenging in a number of our
key markets over the year ahead. We will remain focused on ensuring
the Group maintains a rigorous and analytical approach to the
management of risk whilst seeking to encourage the innovation and
entrepreneurship necessary to drive growth across the portfolio.

/s/ Gerard Kleisterlee
Gerard Kleisterlee

Chairman

20 May 2014

How have we complied with the UK Corporate Governance Code?
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Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014 and to the date of this document, we complied with the provisions and

applied the Main Principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code ), published in September 2012. The

Code can be found on the FRC website (frc.org.uk). We describe how we have applied those Main Principles in this

section of the annual report which includes our statement of internal control and risk management, together with the
Directors remuneration section on pages 69 to 85.

How have we complied with the corporate governance statement requirements?
We comply with the corporate governance statement requirements pursuant to the FCA s Disclosure and Transparency

Rules by virtue of the information included in this Governance section of the annual report together with information
contained in the Shareholder information section on pages 182 to 189.
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Board composition

Our Board consists of 14 directors, 13 of whom served throughout the year. Valerie Gooding was appointed as a
non-executive director with effect from 1 February 2014.

At 31 March 2014, in addition to the Chairman, Gerard Kleisterlee, there were three executive directors and ten
non-executive directors. Andy Halford, the Chief Financial Officer, retired on 31 March 2014 and Nick Read was
appointed to this role and as an executive director with effect from 1 April 2014. The executive and non-executive

directors are equal members of the Board and have collective responsibility for the Company s direction. In particular,
non-executive directors are responsible for:

g bringing a wide range of skills and experience, including independent judgement on issues of strategy, performance
and risk management;

g constructively challenging the strategy proposed by the Chief Executive and executive directors;

g scrutinising and challenging performance across the Group s business;

g assessing risk and the integrity of the financial information and controls; and

g determining the Company s broad policy for executive remuneration, and the remuneration packages for the
executive directors and the Chairman.

The balance and independence of our Board is kept under review by our Nominations and Governance Committee,
details of which can be found on pages 58 and 59.

Tenure of non-executive directors

The Code suggests that length of tenure is a factor to consider when determining the independence of non-executive

directors. The table below shows the tenure and independence of each of our non-executive directors. We consider all
of our non-executive directors to be independent.
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Date first Considered to
elected by Years from be independent
first election to
shareholders 2014 AGM by the Board
Gerard Kleisterlee July 2011 3 See note!
To be put up for
Valerie Gooding election July 2014 n/a Yes
Renee James July 2011 3 Yes
Alan Jebson July 2007 7 Yes
Samuel Jonah July 2009 5 Yes
Omid Kordestani July 2013 1 Yes
Nick Land July 2007 7 Yes
Anne Lauvergeon July 2006 8 Yes
Luc Vandevelde July 2004 10 Yes?
Anthony Watson July 2006 8 Yes
Philip Yea July 2006 8 Yes

Notes:

1 Considered to be independent on appointment.
2 Considered to be independent for the reasons given on page 59.

Key roles and responsibilities

The Chairman

Gerard Kleisterlee

The role of the Chairman is set out in writing and agreed by the Board. He is responsible for:

g the effective leadership, operation and

governance of the Board;
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g ensuring the effectiveness of the Board;

g setting the agenda, style and tone of

Board discussions; and

g ensuring the directors receive accurate,

timely and clear information.

The Senior Independent Director

Luc Vandevelde

The Senior Independent Director is responsible for:

g acting as a sounding board for the

Chairman;

g serving as an intermediary for the other

directors;

g being available to shareholders if they
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have concerns which they have not been able to resolve through the normal channels of the Chairman, Chief
Executive or other executive directors or for which such contact is inappropriate; and

g conducting an annual review of the

performance of the Chairman and, in the event it should be necessary, convening a meeting of the non-executive
directors.

The Chief Executive

Vittorio Colao

The role of the Chief Executive is set out in writing and agreed by the Board. He is responsible for:

g management of the Group s business;

g implementation of the Company s

strategy and policies;

g maintaining a close working relationship

with the Chairman; and

g chairing the Executive Committee.
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The Company Secretary

Rosemary Martin

The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Board. In doing so she:

g assists the Chairman in ensuring that all

directors have full and timely access to all relevant information;

g assists the Chairman by organising

induction and training programmes;

g is responsible for ensuring that the

correct Board procedures are followed and advises the Board on corporate governance matters; and

g administers the procedure under which

directors can, where appropriate, obtain independent professional advice at the Company s expense.

Biographical details of the Chairman, Chief Executive and Senior Independent Director can be found on pages 50 and
51 or at vodafone.com/board. Biographical details of the Company Secretary can be found on page 53 or at
vodafone.com/exco. The appointment or removal of the Company Secretary is a matter for the Board as a whole.
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Corporate governance (continued)

Board activities in the 2014 financial year

Board activities are structured to assist the Board in achieving its goal to support and advise executive management on
the delivery of the Group s strategy within a transparent governance framework.

The diagram below shows the key areas of focus for the Board which appear as items on the Board s agenda at relevant

times throughout the year. Concentrated discussion of these items assists the Board in making the right decisions
based on the long-term opportunities for the business and its stakeholders.

Conflicts of interest

The Board is aware of the other commitments of its directors and is satisfied that these do not conflict with their duties
as directors of the Company. The process for monitoring conflicts is as follows:

g changes to the commitments of all directors are reported to the Board;

g the directors are required to complete a conflicts questionnaire initially on appointment and annually thereafter;

g any conflicts identified would be submitted to the Board (excluding the director to whom the potential conflict
related) for consideration and, as appropriate, authorisation in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and the
articles of association;

g where authorisation is granted, it would be recorded in a register of potential conflicts and reviewed periodically;
and
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g directors are responsible for notifying the Company Secretary if they become aware of actual or potential conflict
situations or a change in circumstances relating to an existing authorisation.

No conflicts of interest have been identified during the year.
Board meetings

Matters considered at all Board meetings include:

g the Chief Executive s report on strategic and business developments;

g the Chief Financial Officer s report which includes the latest available management accounts;

g an operations update (covering commercial, technology and operational matters);

g areport on potential changes to the Group s portfolio of corporate assets; and

g where applicable, reports from the Nominations and Governance Committee, Audit and Risk Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

In addition to the standing agenda items, topics covered by the Board during the year included the disposal of the
Company s interest in Verizon Wireless, the acquisition of the remaining interest in Vodafone Italy, the acquisition of
Kabel Deutschland and the audit tender.

Board effectiveness

Board effectiveness is reviewed every year. After last year s external performance evaluation the Board agreed:

g to develop further its approach to strategic planning and involve the directors earlier in the process of strategy
development;

g to provide more opportunities for the directors to meet with executives to assist in succession planning; and

g to ensure the induction of new directors enables them rapidly to contribute fully to the Board.

Since then, the Chairman has introduced a number of improvements including: informing the Board regularly about
possible Board appointments, trying to speed up the director appointment process, organising for senior executives to
brief directors on various aspects of our business and increasing the number of opportunities available for senior
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executives to meet with the Board, e.g. through informal meetings or mentoring, and improving the induction
programme for new directors.

Performance evaluation

Board effectiveness is reviewed by an external performance evaluation every three years. As an external evaluation
was conducted last year, this year the Board performed an internal performance evaluation.
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What is the performance evaluation process?

This year the Chairman met with each director and with executives and advisors who interact with the Board.
Interviewees were asked to consider and comment on the performance of the Board as a whole.

The directors were also asked for their views on, amongst other things: Company strategy, key challenges for the
business, the mix of skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity on the Board (including gender),
effectiveness of the Board s engagement with shareholders and how well the Board operates.

The Chairman reviewed the directors contributions and the Senior Independent Director led the review of the
performance of the Chairman.

Each Board committee undertook a detailed self-assessment questionnaire.

Output of the performance evaluation

g

The Chairman of each Board committee gave feedback on the evaluation of their committee to the Board at its
March meeting.

The Chairman prepared a report on the performance evaluation which was distributed to the directors, reviewed by
the Nominations and Governance Committee, and discussed with the Board at the March Board meeting.

This year s findings were that the Board was reasonably well balanced. Diversity had improved and it should
continue on that path. The process for appointing directors needed to be speeded up. Board arrangements and
information flows were generally satisfactory, but more focus could be given on market information and the
changing regulatory and competitive environment. Some further refinement of the presentation of performance
metrics was agreed. The Board was comfortable with the strong value system and control framework in the
Company. Directors observed that executive succession planning had improved. Overall, the directors considered
the right balance is struck between operational, strategic and governance matters and directors were positive about
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the open atmosphere around the boardroom table allowing for a robust and constructive dialogue.

The Board will continue to review its procedures, its effectiveness and development in the financial year ahead.
Board induction

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that each director receives an induction on joining the Board and receives
the training he or she requires. The Company Secretary organises the induction.

Director induction

On appointment, directors receive a personalised induction programme covering amongst other things:

g the business of the Group;

g their legal and regulatory responsibilities as directors;

g briefings and presentations from relevant executives; and

g opportunities to visit business operations.
The induction programme is tailored to each new director, depending on his or her experience and background, and
reviewed by the Nominations and Governance Committee.

Information and professional development

Keeping up-to-date with key business developments is essential for the directors to maintain and enhance their
effectiveness. This is achieved as follows:

g from time to time the Board receives presentations from executives in our business on matters of significance. This
year there were presentations on our Enterprise business, retail distribution, new products and the regional chief
executives delivered presentations on their region s businesses, the Chief Commercial Officer and Chief Brand
Director presented on brand status and evolution and the Group HR Director delivered a presentation on planned
actions for improving talent, capability and effectiveness within the Company;

g financial plans, including budgets and forecasts, are regularly discussed at Board meetings;

g the directors have the opportunity to learn the views of major investors at planned events throughout the year (see
How do we engage with our shareholders? on page 66);
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g our directors periodically visit different parts of the Group. In September 2013 the Board met with senior
management in the Netherlands and in March 2014 the Board met with senior management in Portugal;

g the non-executive directors are provided with briefings and information to assist them in performing their duties;
and

g the directors are regularly updated on the Group s businesses and the regulatory and industry specific environments
in which we operate. Updates are by way of written briefings and meetings with senior executives and, where
appropriate, external sources.

As part of their annual performance evaluation, directors are given the opportunity to discuss training and
development needs. Directors are expected to take responsibility for identifying their training needs and to take steps
to ensure that they are adequately informed about the Company and their responsibilities as a director. The Board is
confident that all its members have the knowledge, ability and experience to perform the functions required of a
director of a listed company. The Board recognises that there may be occasions when one or more of the directors
feels it is necessary to take independent legal and/or financial advice at the Company s expense. There is an agreed
procedure to enable them to do so which is managed by the Company Secretary. No such independent advice was
sought in the 2014 financial year.

Re-election of directors

All the directors submit themselves for re-election at the AGM to be held on 29 July 2014 with the exception of
Valerie Gooding, Dame Clara Furse, Nick Read and Sir Crispin Davis who will seek election for the first time in
accordance with our articles of association and Anne Lauvergeon, Alan Jebson and Anthony Watson who will resign
from the Board at the AGM. The Nominations and Governance Committee confirmed to the Board that the
contributions made by the directors offering themselves for re-election at the AGM in July 2014 continue to be
effective and that the Company should support their re-election.

Indemnification of directors
In accordance with our articles of association and to the extent permitted by the laws of England and Wales, directors
are granted an indemnity from the Company in respect of liabilities incurred as a result of their office. In addition, we

maintained a directors and officers liability insurance policy throughout the year. Neither our indemnity nor the
insurance provides cover in the event that a director is proven to have acted dishonestly or fraudulently.
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Corporate governance (continued)

Board committees

The Board has a Nominations and Governance Committee, an Audit and Risk Committee and a Remuneration
Committee. Further details of these committees can be found in their reports on pages 58 to 65. The terms of reference
of each of these committees can be found on our website at vodafone.com/governance.

The committees are provided with all necessary resources to enable them to undertake their duties in an effective
manner. The Company Secretary or her delegate acts as secretary to the committees. The minutes of committee
meetings are circulated to all directors.

The calendar for meetings of the Board and its committees is shown below.

AprMay JunJul AugSep OctNov Dec Jan FebMar
13 13 1313 13 13 13 13 13 14 14 14
Board

(scheduled meetings)
Nominations and

Governance Committee
Audit and Risk
Committee
Remuneration

Committee

Directors unable to attend a Board meeting because of another engagement are provided with the briefing materials
and can discuss issues arising in the meeting with the Chairman or the Chief Executive. In addition to scheduled
Board meetings, there may be a number of other meetings to deal with specific matters. Each scheduled Board
meeting is preceded by a meeting of the Chairman and non-executive directors.

Attendance at scheduled meetings of the Board and its committees in the 2014 financial year
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Nominations

and

GovernancAudit and RisRemuneration
Director Board Committee Committee Committee
Chairman
Gerard Kleisterlee! 717 3/3
Senior Independent Director
Luc Vandevelde? 717 3/3 5/5
Chief Executive
Vittorio Colao 717
Executive directors
Andy Halford 717
Stephen Pusey 717
Non-executive directors
Valerie Gooding3 171
Renee James 717 4/5
Alan Jebson 777 4/4
Samuel Jonah 777 4/5
Omid Kordestani 717
Nick Land4 717 4/4
Anne Lauvergeon 777 4/4
Anthony Watson 777 3/3 4/4
Philip Yea 717 3/3 5/5
Notes:

1 Chairman of the Nominations and Governance Committee.

2 Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
3 Appointed to the Board with effect from 1 February 2014.

4 Chairman and Financial Expert of the Audit and Risk Committee.

Key objective:

to make sure the Board comprises individuals with the necessary skills, knowledge and experience to ensure that it is
effective in discharging its responsibilities and to have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance.

Responsibilities:

g leads the process for identifying and making recommendations to the Board regarding candidates for appointment
as directors, giving full consideration to succession planning and the leadership needs of the Group;

g makes recommendations to the Board on the composition of the Board s committees;

g regularly reviews and makes recommendations in relation to the structure, size and composition of the Board
including the diversity and balance of skills, knowledge and experience, and the independence of the non-executive
directors;
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g oversees the performance evaluation of the Board, its committees and individual directors (see pages 56 and 57);

g reviews the tenure of each of the non-executive directors; and

g 1is responsible for the oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance, bringing any issues to the attention
of the Board.
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Committee meetings

No one other than a member of the Committee is entitled to be present at its meetings; however, other non-executive
directors, the Chief Executive and external advisors may be invited to attend. In the event of matters arising
concerning my membership of the Board, I would absent myself from the meeting as required and the Board s Senior
Independent Director would take the chair.

Main activities of the Committee during the year

The Committee met four times during the year and considered executive and non-executive succession planning,
refreshment of skills of the Board and the Board effectiveness review.

The Committee leads the process for appointments to the Board. There is a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure
for the appointment of new directors. Candidates are identified and selected on merit against objective criteria and
with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board, including gender.

Four external searches were commissioned during the year, using independent executive search firms, Korn Ferry and
Egon Zehnder, neither of which has any other connection to the Company. The first search related to identification of
non-executive director candidates with relevant City and/or marketing experience and was undertaken by Korn Ferry.
Valerie Gooding was identified as a potential candidate and subsequently recommended to the Board by the
Committee on the basis that she met the desired criteria having previously been leader of a branded consumer
business.

Korn Ferry also undertook a search to identify a non-executive director with international business experience and
chief executive officer experience. The search identified Sir Crispin Davis as a potential candidate and he was
subsequently recommended to the Board by the Committee based on his international business experience as a former
CEO of a global publishing company. A search was also conducted, again by Korn Ferry, to identify a non-executive
director with international banking and finance experience as well as chief executive officer experience. This search
identified Dame Clara Furse who was recommended by the Committee for appointment by the Board based on her
significant banking and finance experience as former CEO of a number of financial institutions.

Egon Zehnder undertook an external search in respect of the role of Group Chief Financial Officer. Concurrent to this
external search, an internal search was undertaken for this role and, following an extensive review of candidates, a
preferred internal candidate was chosen with Nick Read being recommended for appointment by the Committee.

The Committee recognises that with the changes in Board composition, changes will be required on the Board s
committees. The first of these changes will be to invite Omid Kordestani to join the Committee with effect from

28 July 2014. Changes will also take place to the Remuneration Committee and Audit and Risk Committee. With
effect from 28 July 2014, Philip Yea will resign from the Remuneration Committee and Valerie Gooding will join the
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Remuneration Committee. Also on 28 July 2014, Sir Crispin Davis, who will be appointed to the Board on this date,
and Philip Yea will join the Audit and Risk Committee. Dame Clara Furse will also join the Audit and Risk
Committee on her appointment to the Board on 1 September 2014.

The Board acknowledges that diversity extends beyond the boardroom and supports management in their efforts to
build a diverse organisation. It endorses the Company s policy to attract and develop a highly qualified and diverse
workforce; to ensure that all selection decisions are based on merit and that all recruitment activities are fair and
non-discriminatory. The boardroom diversity policy was introduced in February 2012 and reviewed by the Committee
in March 2013 and March 2014. It acknowledges the importance of diversity, including gender, to the effective
functioning of the Board and focuses on our aspiration to have a minimum of 25% female representation on the Board
by 2015. With the appointment of Valerie Gooding on 1 February 2014 the Board has 21% female representation
which will increase to 23% on the appointment of Dame Clara Furse on 1 September 2014. Subject to securing
suitable candidates, when making appointments we will seek directors who fit the skills criteria and gender balance
that is in line with the Board s aspiration. We continue to focus on encouraging diversity of business skills and
experience, recognising that directors with diverse skills sets, capabilities and experience gained from different
geographic and cultural backgrounds enhance the Board. Further information, including the proportions of women in
senior management, is shown in Our people on page 36 and within the organisation overall, is contained in our
2013-14 sustainability report, available at vodafone.com/sustainability/report2014.

This year, when reviewing the re-election of directors at the AGM in July, the Committee took account of the fact that
Luc Vandevelde will have served 11 years as of 31 August 2014 and Philip Yea will have served nine years as of

1 September 2014. The Board has considered the matter carefully and believes that both these non-executive directors
continue to demonstrate the qualities of independence and judgement in carrying out their roles, supporting the
executive directors and senior management in an objective manner. Their length of service and resulting experience
and knowledge of the Company is of great benefit to the Board and both directors will stand for re-election at the
AGM. The subject of their independence will be kept under review.

In the year ahead the Committee will continue to assess what enhancements should be made to the Board s and
committees composition and will continue to monitor developments in corporate governance to ensure the Company
remains at the forefront of good governance practices.

/s/ Gerard Kleisterlee

Gerard Kleisterlee

On behalf of the Nominations and Governance Committee

20 May 2014
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Corporate governance (continued)

Key objective:
the provision of effective governance over the appropriateness of the Group s financial reporting including the
adequacy of related disclosures, the performance of both the internal audit function and the external auditor and

oversight over the Group s systems of internal control, business risks and related compliance activities.

Responsibilities:

g reviewing our financial results announcements and financial statements and monitoring compliance with relevant
statutory and listing requirements;

g reporting to the Board on the appropriateness of our accounting policies and practices including those identified as
critical and requiring further disclosure;

g advising the Board on whether the annual report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance, business model and
strategy;

g overseeing the relationship with the external auditor;

g reviewing the scope, resources, results and effectiveness of the activity of the Group internal audit department;

g monitoring our compliance efforts in respect of section 404 and section 302 of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act;
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g considering and making recommendations to the Board on the nature and extent of the significant risks the Group is
willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives;

g overseeing the Group s compliance processes; and

g performing in-depth reviews of specific areas of financial reporting, risk and internal controls.
The Committee and its work

The membership of the Committee has been selected with the aim of providing the wide range of financial and
commercial expertise necessary to meet its responsibilities. Given my recent and relevant financial experience, the
Board has designated me as its financial expert on the Committee for the purposes of the US Sarbanes-Oxley Act and
the UK Corporate Governance Code. There were no changes to the membership of the Committee during the year, all
of whom are non-executive directors of the Company.

The Committee meets at least four times during the year as part of its standard processes, supplemented by additional
meetings as necessary. The external auditor, Deloitte LLP, is also invited to each meeting together with the Chief
Executive, the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Financial Controller, the Group Financial Reporting Director and

the Group Audit Director. The work of the Committee is structured around its responsibilities set out above and its
detailed terms of reference which are available at vodafone.com/governance. In addition to these activities the
Committee conducts a rolling programme of in-depth review sessions where the Group s senior management provide
briefings on key issues and developments particularly in relation to aspects of risk management. A summary of the
reviews undertaken during the year are set out within Risk management below.

The Committee also regularly meets separately with Deloitte LLP, the Chief Financial Officer and the Group Audit
Director without others being present.

Meetings of the Committee generally take place just prior to a Board meeting to maximise the efficiency of interaction
with the Board and I report to the Board, as part of a separate agenda item, on the activity of the Committee and
matters of particular relevance to the Board in the conduct of its work.

Following the external review of the Committee s effectiveness in the previous year, I, together with the Committee s

secretary, conducted an internal review of effectiveness involving the members of the Committee, Company
management and the external auditor. This confirmed the Committee remained effective at meeting its objectives.
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Main activities of the Committee during the year

I have set out below a summary of the major activities of the Committee in the year categorised between; financial
reporting and the related statutory audit; risk management; and the assessment of internal controls. In addition, the
Committee conducted a tender for the statutory audit through the process summarised on page 63.

Financial reporting and the related statutory audit

The Committee s primary responsibility in relation to the Group s financial reporting is to review with both
management and the external auditor the appropriateness of the half-year and annual financial statements
concentrating on, amongst other matters:

g the quality and acceptability of accounting policies and practices;

g the clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial reporting standards and relevant financial and
governance reporting requirements;

g any correspondence from regulators in relation to our financial reporting;

g material areas in which significant judgements have been applied or there has been discussion with the external
auditor; and

g whether the annual report, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance, business model and strategy. As part of the
Committee s assessment of the annual report, it draws on the work of the Group s disclosure committee and also has
discussions with senior management. The Committee s overall assessment forms the basis of the advice given to the
Board to assist them in making the statement required by the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The Committee is committed to the continuous improvement in the effectiveness and clarity of the Group s corporate
reporting and has encouraged management to support and adopt initiatives by regulatory bodies which would enhance
our reporting.
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External audit

At the start of the audit cycle for the new financial year we received from Deloitte LLP a detailed audit plan
identifying their audit scope, planning materiality and their assessment of key risks, which were discussed and agreed
with the Committee. Planning materiality was lower this year, primarily driven by the disposal of our interest in
Verizon Wireless. The audit risk identification process is considered a key factor in the overall effectiveness of the
external audit process. For the 2014 financial year, the key risks identified were a combination of those identified in
the 2013 financial year, being those in relation to goodwill impairment, provisioning for current tax liabilities and
deferred tax asset recognition, and revenue recognition as these areas continue to require inherent management
judgement, and three new specific risks identified in relation to (i) the accounting for the disposal of our interest in
Verizon Wireless and the related acquisition of the remaining 23% interest in Vodafone Italy, (ii) the accounting for
our acquisition of Kabel Deutschland and (iii) provisioning for legal and regulatory claims. The latter risk factor was
added specifically in response to the reduction in audit materiality.

At each meeting of the Committee, these risks are reviewed and both management s primary areas of judgement and
the external auditor s key areas of audit focus, are challenged. As a Committee, we support the professional scepticism,
particularly in the areas of key judgement and accounting disclosure, displayed by Deloitte LLP.

We hold private meetings with the external auditor at each Committee meeting to provide additional opportunity for
open dialogue and feedback from the Committee and the auditor without management being present. Matters typically
discussed include the external auditor s assessment of business risks and management activity thereon, the
transparency and openness of interactions with management, confirmation that there has been no restriction in scope
placed on them by management, independence of their audit and how they have exercised professional scepticism. |
also meet with the external lead audit partner outside the formal Committee process throughout the year.

External audit process effectiveness

We use an audit quality framework to assess the effectiveness of the external audit process. This involves detailed
questioning of management at an operating company and Group level and also the members of the Committee. We
also considered the firm-wide audit quality inspection report issued by the FRC in May 2013 and Deloitte LLP s
response to the findings. The observations from this assessment for the 2014 financial year were presented and
discussed at the May 2014 meeting. Management concluded that there had been appropriate focus and challenge on
the primary areas of audit risk and assessed the quality of the audit process to be satisfactory. The Committee
concurred with this view. The Committee has identified the 2015 financial year as a potential period of increased risk
given the transition of the statutory auditor and will focus closely on this matter throughout the year.

Risk management

The Group s risk assessment process and the way in which significant business risks are managed is a key area of
focus for the Committee. Our work here was driven primarily by the Group s assessment of its principal risks and
uncertainties, as set out on pages 196 to 200. We receive reports from the Group Audit Director on the Group s risk

evaluation process and review changes to significant risks identified at both operating entity and Group levels.

In addition, the Committee also conducts a rolling programme of in-depth reviews into specific financial, operational
and regulatory areas of the business. During the 2014 financial year, in-depth reviews were undertaken in the areas of:

g corporate treasury management;
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g legal intercept and related data management;

g competition law and anti-bribery law compliance;

g the management of risk within the supply chain;

g information security;

g risk management within the IT platform standardisation programme in Vodafone UK; and

g the control environment in Vodafone Ghana.

In addition, the Committee received an update on Group legal compliance matters.

These reviews are critical to the role of the Committee, as they allow us to meet key business leaders responsible for
these areas and provide independent challenge to their activities.
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Corporate governance (continued)

Significant issues

The Committee discussed with management the critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty outlined in note 1 Basis of preparation . The significant areas of focus considered by the Committee in
relation to the 2014 accounts, and how these were addressed, are outlined below:

Matter considered
Goodwill impairment testing
This continued to represent a significant area of focus for

the Committee given the materiality of the Group s goodwill
balances (£23.3 billion at 31 March 2014) and the inherent

subjectivity in impairment testing. The judgements in

relation to goodwill impairment continue to relate primarily
to the assumptions underlying the calculation of the value in
use of the business, being the achievability of the long-term
business plan and the macroeconomic and related modelling

assumptions underlying the valuation process.

Taxation

The Group is subject to a range of tax claims and related
legal actions across a number of jurisdictions where it
operates. The most material claim is from the Indian tax

authorities in relation to our acquisition of Vodafone India
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Action

The Committee received detailed reporting from
management and challenged the appropriateness of the
assumptions made. Areas of focus were the
achievability of the business plans, assumptions in
relation to terminal growth in the businesses at the end
of the plan period, particularly in Europe where
adverse trends in financial performance have been
experienced, and discount rates, which have been
subject to volatility given the current macroeconomic
conditions.

This remains a prime area of audit focus and Deloitte
LLP provided detailed reporting on these matters to the
Committee including sensitivity testing.

The Group Tax Director presented management s view
of both the provisioning and disclosure of tax
contingencies and deferred tax asset recognition at the
May 2014 meeting of the Committee. In respect of tax
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Limited from Hutchison Telecommunications International
Limited group in 2007, for the amount of INR 142 billion
(£1.4 billion) including interest. Further details of this claim
are described in note 30 Contingent liabilities .

Further, the Group has extensive accumulated tax losses as
outlined in note 6 Taxation , and a key management
judgement is whether a deferred tax asset should be
recognised in respect of these losses. As at 31 March 2014
the Group had recognised a £21.2 billion deferred tax asset
in respect of these tax losses.

Liability provisioning
The Group is subject to a range of claims and legal actions
from a number of sources including competitors, regulators,
customers, suppliers, and on occasion fellow shareholders in
Group subsidiaries. The level of provisioning for contingent
and other liabilities is an issue where management and legal
judgements are important and accordingly an area of
Committee focus. The most material claim is from Telecom
Egypt in relation to allegations of breach of
non-discrimination provisions within an interconnect
agreement. Details of the claim are outlined in note 30
Contingent liabilities .

Revenue recognition

The timing of revenue recognition, the recognition of
revenue on a gross or net basis, the treatment of discounts,
incentives and commissions and the accounting for
multi-element arrangements are complex areas of
accounting.

Acquisitions and disposals

The Group made a number of highly material business
acquisitions and disposals during the year including the
disposal of Verizon Wireless, and the acquisition of
interests in Kabel Deutschland and Vodafone Italy. This
gave rise to a number of complex accounting and disclosure
requirements in the financial statements.

IT controls in relation to privileged user access

The Group s IT infrastructure platform hosts a number of
financial reporting related applications. An issue was
identified in respect of privileged user access controls
within part of the IT infrastructure platform which could
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contingencies, including the India case noted opposite,
this involved a discussion of the extent and strength of
professional advice received from external legal and
advisory firms. In relation to the recognition of the
deferred tax assets, management s plans and
expectations for future taxable profits were critically
reviewed.

This is also an area of higher audit risk and
accordingly, the Committee receives detailed oral and
written reporting from Deloitte LLP on these matters.

The Committee received a presentation from the

Group s General Counsel and Company Secretary in
May 2014 on management s assessment of the most
material claims, including relevant legal advice
received and the level of provision held against each.
Deloitte LLP also reviews these matters, forming an
independent view that is discussed with the Committee.

Deloitte LLP outlined to the Committee their approach
to the audit of revenue, as part of their presentation of
the detailed audit plan. The Committee also considered
any observations made by the auditors as part of their
reporting to the Committee.

Management outlined the key accounting and
disclosure impacts in relation to these transactions. The
Committee requested and received detailed reporting
from Deloitte LLP on their assessment of the
accounting and disclosures made by management in
both the half-year and annual financial statements.

Management outlined tested alternative controls in
place which provided assurance over the completeness
and accuracy of the information derived from the
impacted financial reporting related applications.
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have had an adverse impact on certain of the Group s

controls and financial systems.
Deloitte LLP extended their controls and substantive
testing to obtain assurance over both the compensating
controls and the completeness and accuracy of the
management information derived from these
applications.
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Assessment of internal control

We reviewed the process by which the Group evaluated its control environment. Our work here was driven primarily
by the Group Audit Director s reports on the effectiveness of internal controls, significant identified frauds and any
identified fraud that involved management or employees with a significant role in internal controls. I meet privately
with the Group s Audit and Compliance Directors outside the formal committee process as necessary.

Oversight of the Group s compliance activities in relation to section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act also falls within
the Committee s remit.

Internal audit

Monitoring and review of the scope, extent and effectiveness of the activity of the Group Internal Audit department is
an agenda item at each Committee meeting. Reports from the Group Audit Director usually include updates on audit
activities, progress of the Group audit plan, the results of any unsatisfactory audits and the action plans to address
these areas, and resource requirements of the Internal Audit department. I play a major role in setting the Group Audit
Director s annual objectives.

Fraud and whistle-blowing
We review the channels in place to enable employees to raise concerns about possible irregularities in financial

reporting or other issues such as breaches of the Code of Conduct and for those matters to be investigated. Further, we
receive summaries of investigations into known or suspected fraudulent activities by both third parties and employees.
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Corporate governance (continued)

Governance of the External Audit relationship

The Committee considers the reappointment of the external auditor and also assesses their independence on an
ongoing basis. The external auditor is required to rotate the audit partner responsible for the Group audit every five
years and the year ended 31 March 2014 will be the current lead audit partner s fifth year. Accordingly, and in
compliance with the provisions outlined in the UK Corporate Governance Code and the notes on best practice issued
by the Financial Reporting Council in July 2013, the Committee decided to put the audit for the 2015 financial year
out to tender in November 2013.

The tender process and the Committee s involvement in that process is outlined in the diagram on page 63. All of the
big 4 audit firms were invited to participate in the tender. Deloitte LLP withdrew at a preliminary stage noting the
longevity of their appointment, having been the Group s auditors since its stock market listing in 1988.

Having concluded the process in February 2014, the Committee recommended to the Board that
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be appointed as the Group s statutory auditor for the 2015 financial year. Accordingly, a
resolution proposing the appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our auditor will be put to the shareholders at
the 2014 AGM. There are no contractual obligations restricting the Committee s choice of external auditor and we do
not indemnify our external auditor.

The Committee will continue to review the auditor appointment and the need to tender the audit, ensuring the Group s
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code and any reforms of the audit market by the UK Competition
Commission and the European Union.

In its assessment of the independence of the auditor and in accordance with the US Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board s standard on independence, the Committee receives details of any relationships between the
Company and Deloitte LLP that may have a bearing on their independence and receives confirmation that they are
independent of the Company within the meaning of the securities laws administered by the US Securities & Exchange
Commission ( SEC ).

During the year, Deloitte LLP and related member firms charged the Group £9 million (2013: £8 million, 2012: £7
million) for statutory audit services. The Committee approved these fees following review of audit scope changes for
the 2014 financial year, including the impact of business acquisitions and disposals which were primarily in relation to
Kabel Deutschland, the disposal of Verizon Wireless and the acquisition of the remaining 23% interest in Vodafone
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Italy. The Committee also received assurance from Deloitte LLP that the fees were appropriate for the scope of the
work required.

Non-audit services

As a further measure to protect the objectivity and independence of the external auditor, the Committee has a policy
governing the engagement of the external auditor to provide non-audit services. This precludes Deloitte LLP from
providing certain services such as valuation work or the provision of accounting services and also sets a presumption
that Deloitte should only be engaged for non-audit services where there is no legal or practical alternative supplier. No
material changes have been made to this policy during the financial year.

For certain specific permitted services, the Committee has pre-approved that Deloitte LLP can be engaged by
management, subject to the policies set out above, and subject to specified fee limits for individual engagements and
fee limits, for each type of specific service. For all other services or those permitted services that exceed the specified
fee limits, I, as Chairman, or in my absence another member, can pre-approve permitted services.

In addition to the statutory audit fee, Deloitte LLP and related member firms charged the Group £4 million (2013: £1
million) for audit-related and other assurance services. These fees were materially higher than in prior years as
Deloitte acted as the Reporting Accountant in relation to a number of shareholder and regulatory filings in connection
with the disposal of our interest in Verizon Wireless and the related acquisition of the remaining 23% interest in
Vodafone Italy. Further details of the fees paid, for both audit and non-audit services, can be found in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For a number of years, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has provided the Group with a wide range of consulting and
assurance services. Following the decision to appoint them as auditors for the 2015 financial year, it was agreed by the
Committee that any existing permitted non-audit service engagements which were not in line with the Group s
non-audit services policy should cease by 30 June 2014. This decision was made to allow a timely transition of these
services and minimise the impact on the business. From 1 April 2014, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will only be
engaged for non-audit services which are in line with the Group s non-audit services policy.

/s/ Nick Land

Nick Land

On behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee

20 May 2014
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Corporate governance (continued)

How do we engage with our shareholders?

We are committed to communicating our strategy and activities clearly to our shareholders and, to that end, we
maintain an active dialogue with investors through a planned programme of investor relations activities.

Investor relations programme
The programme includes:
g formal presentations of full-year and

half-year results, and interim management statements (see vodafone.com/investor for more information);
g briefing meetings with major institutional

shareholders in the UK, the United States and Europe after the full-year and half-year results; (a graph showing the
geographical analysis of investors is shown on this page);
g regular investor relations meetings with

investors in other geographies;
g formal presentations around significant

acquisitions and disposals, e.g. the acquisition of Kabel Deutschland and the Verizon Wireless transaction;
g regular meetings between institutional

investors and analysts, and the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer, to discuss business performance,
growth strategy and address any issues of concern;

g meetings between major shareholders

and the Chairman on an ongoing basis including roadshows in London and Edinburgh to obtain feedback and
consider corporate governance issues;

g analysing and approaching new

geographies to actively market the business to new investors;
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g dialogue between the Remuneration

Committee and shareholders. Go to pages 70 and 71 for more information;
g hosting investors and analysts sessions

at which senior management from relevant operating companies are present;
g attendance by senior executives across

the business at relevant meetings and conferences throughout the year;
g responding daily to enquiries from

shareholders and analysts through our Investor Relations team;
g hosting webinars to highlight key areas of

the business such as M-Pesa and money payment services, Vodafone Turkey, Vodafone Netherlands and 4G; and
g a section dedicated to shareholders and

analysts on our website at vodafone.com/investor, including specific sections for any material transactions or
shareholder events, e.g. the Verizon Wireless transaction.
The Chairman has overall responsibility for ensuring that there is effective communication with investors, and that the
Board understands the views of major shareholders on matters such as governance and strategy. The Chairman makes
himself available to meet shareholders for this purpose. The Senior Independent Director and other members of the
Board are also available to meet major investors on request. The Board receives a regular report from the Investor

Relations team and feedback from meetings held between executive management, or the Investor Relations team and
institutional shareholders, is also communicated to the Board.

What happens at our AGM?

Who attends?

g All of our directors.

g Executive Committee members.

g Our shareholders.

What is the format?

g A summary presentation of results is given before the Chairman deals with the formal business.
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g All shareholders present can question the Chairman, the Chairmen of the Committees and the rest of the Board both
during the meeting and informally afterwards.

g The Board encourages participation of investors, including individual investors, at the AGM.

AGM broadcast

g The AGM is broadcast live on our website at vodafone.com/agm.

g A recording can subsequently be viewed on our website.
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Resolutions

g Voting on all resolutions at the AGM is on a poll. The proxy votes cast, including details of votes withheld, are
disclosed to those in attendance at the meeting and the results are published on our website and announced via the
Regulatory News Service.

A summary of our share and control structures is set out in Shareholder information on pages 182 to 189.

How do we deal with internal control

and risk management?

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal control. A sound system of internal control is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established procedures that implement in full the Turnbull Guidance Internal Control: Revised
Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code for the year under review and to the date of this annual report. These
procedures, which are subject to regular review, provide an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks we face. See page 89 for management s report on internal control over financial reporting.

Monitoring and review activities

There are clear processes for monitoring the system of internal control and reporting any significant control failings or
weaknesses together with details of corrective action. These include:

g the local Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer of each operating business formally certifying the operation
of their control systems each year and highlighting any weaknesses. These results are reviewed by regional
management, the Audit and Risk Committee, and the Board;

g local Chief Executives certifying compliance with high risk policies in their companies, with Group Compliance
reviewing evidence of compliance;
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g the Group s Disclosure Committee reviewing the appropriateness of disclosures and providing an annual report to
the Group s Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer on the effectiveness of the Group s disclosure controls
and procedures;

g maintaining disclosure controls and procedures , as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, that
are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports that we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarised and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including our Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure; and

g the Group Internal Audit department periodically examining business processes on a risk basis throughout
the Group and reporting to the Audit and Risk Committee.

In addition, the Board reviews any reports from the external auditor presented to the Audit and Risk Committee and
management in relation to internal financial controls.

g evaluating the risks we face in achieving our objectives;

g determining the risks that are considered acceptable to bear;

g assessing the likelihood of the risks concerned materialising;

g identifying our ability to reduce the incidence and impact on the business of risks that do materialise; and

g ensuring that the costs of operating particular controls are proportionate to the benefit.

Risk management

Although many risks remain outside of our direct control, a range of activities are in place to mitigate the primary
risks identified including those set out on pages 196 to 200. The framework for identifying and managing our risks is
set out on page 46. A range of mitigations for risks faced by the Group are included on page 90.

Review of effectiveness

The Board and the Audit and Risk Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk management in accordance with the Code for the period from
1 April 2013 to 20 May 2014 (the date of this annual report). No significant failings or weaknesses were identified
during this review. However, had there been any such failings or weaknesses, the Board confirms that necessary
actions would have been taken to remedy them.
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The directors, the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures and, based on that evaluation, have concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures
were effective at the end of the period covered by this report.

What is our approach to other governance matters?
Group policy compliance

Each Group policy is owned by a member of the Executive Committee so that there is clear accountability and
authority for ensuring the associated business risk is adequately managed. Regional chief executives and the senior
leadership team member responsible for each Group function have primary accountability for ensuring compliance
with all Group policies by all our markets and entities. Our Group Compliance team and policy champions support the
policy owners and local markets in implementing policies and monitoring compliance.

Code of Conduct

All of the key Group policies have been consolidated into the Vodafone Code of Conduct. This is a central ethical and
policy document applicable to all employees and those who work for or on behalf of Vodafone. It sets out the
standards of behaviour expected in relation to areas such as insider dealing, bribery and raising concerns through the
whistle-blowing process (known internally as Speak Up ).
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Corporate governance (continued)

What are our US listing requirements?

As Vodafone s American depositary shares are listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC ( NASDAQ ), we are
required to disclose a summary of any material differences between the corporate governance practices we follow and
those of US companies listed on NASDAQ. Vodafone s corporate governance practices are primarily based on UK
requirements but substantially conform to those required of US companies listed on NASDAQ. The material
differences are as follows:

Independence

Different tests of independence for Board members are applied under the Code and the NASDAQ listing rules. The
Board is not required to take into consideration NASDAQ s detailed definitions of independence as set out in the
NASDAQ listing rules.

In accordance with the Code, the Board has carried out an assessment based on the independence requirements of the
Code and has determined that, in its judgement, all of Vodafone s non-executive directors (who make up the majority
of the Board) are independent within the meaning of those requirements.

Committees

The NASDAQ listing rules require US companies to have a nominations committee, an audit committee and a
compensation committee, each composed entirely of independent directors, with the nominations committee and the
audit committee each required to have a written charter which addresses the committee s purpose and responsibilities,
and the compensation committee having sole authority and adequate funding to engage compensation consultants,
independent legal counsel and other compensation advisors.

Our Nominations and Governance Committee is chaired by the Chairman of the Board and its other members are
independent non-executive directors. Our Remuneration Committee is composed entirely of independent
non-executive directors.

The Audit and Risk Committee is composed entirely of non-executive directors, each of whom (i) the Board has

determined to be independent based on the independence requirements of the Code and (ii) meets the independence
requirements of the Exchange Act. We have terms of reference for our Nominations and Governance Committee,
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Audit and Risk Committee and Remuneration Committee, each of which complies with the requirements of the Code
and is available for inspection on our website (vodafone.com/governance). These terms of reference are generally
responsive to the relevant NASDAQ listing rules but may not address all aspects of these rules.

Code of Conduct

Under the NASDAQ listing rules, US companies must adopt a code of conduct applicable to all directors, officers and
employees that complies with the definition of a code of ethics set out in section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We
have adopted a Code of Ethics that complies with section 406 which is applicable only to the senior financial and
principal executive officers, and which is available on our website (vodafone.com/governance). We have also adopted
a separate Code of Conduct which applies to all employees.

Quorum

The quorum required for shareholder meetings, in accordance with our articles of association, is two shareholders,
regardless of the level of their aggregate share ownership, while US companies listed on NASDAQ are required by the
NASDAQ listing rules to have a minimum quorum of 33.33% of the shareholders of ordinary shares for shareholder
meetings.

Related party transactions

In lieu of obtaining an independent review of related party transactions for conflicts of interests in accordance with the
NASDAQ listing rules, we seek shareholder approval for related party transactions that (i) meet certain financial
thresholds or (ii) have unusual features in accordance with the Listing Rules issued by the FCA in the United
Kingdom (the Listing Rules ), the Companies Act 2006 and our articles of association.

Further, we use the definition of a transaction with a related party as set out in the Listing Rules, which differs in
certain respects from the definition of related party transaction in the NASDAQ listing rules.

Shareholder approval

We comply with the NASDAQ listing rules and the Listing Rules, when determining whether shareholder approval is
required for a proposed transaction.

Under the NASDAQ listing rules, whether shareholder approval is required for a transaction depends on, among other
things, the percentage of shares to be issued or sold in connection with the transaction. Under the Listing Rules,
whether shareholder approval is required for a transaction depends on, among other things, whether the size of a
transaction exceeds a certain percentage of the size of the listed company undertaking the transaction.
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Letter from the Remuneration Committee Chairman

Luc Vandevelde

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Dear fellow shareholder

I am pleased to present you with Vodafone s remuneration report for 2014.

This year will be the first time we will ask shareholders to vote on our remuneration policy in addition to the rest of
the remuneration report. With the new remuneration disclosure regulations in mind we have changed the structure of
our report to present first our policy and then detail its implementation. Apart from some changes which I outline
below, our policy and practice remain essentially unchanged.

As always we have tried to ensure that the remuneration policy and practice at Vodafone drive behaviours that are in
the long-term interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Remuneration Committee continues to be mindful of
the considerable interest that exists in executive compensation and we are very conscious of the many and varied
concerns.

Our remuneration principles

Our remuneration principles, which our detailed policy supports, are as follows:

g we offer competitive and fair rates of pay and benefits to attract and retain the best people;

g our policy and practices aim to drive behaviours that support our Company strategy and business objectives;

g our pay for performance approach means that our incentive plans only deliver significant rewards if and when they
are justified by performance; and

g our approach to share ownership is designed to help maintain commitment over the long-term, and to ensure that
the interests of our senior management team are aligned with those of shareholders.

Table of Contents 129



Edgar Filing: VODAFONE GROUP PUBLIC LTD CO - Form 20-F

Pay for performance
Pay for performance continues to be an important principle for Vodafone when setting remuneration policy.

A high proportion of total reward is awarded through short-term and long-term performance related remuneration. At
target around 70% of the package is delivered in the form of variable pay, which rises to around 85% if maximum
payout is achieved.

We ensure our incentive plans only deliver significant rewards if and when they are justified by performance. For the
Remuneration Committee this means two things:

g ensuring the targets we set for incentive plans are suitably challenging (as can be seen by the historic levels of
achievement for both short-and long-term incentive plans shown on page 82); and

g if needed, exercising discretion. The Committee reviews all incentive plans before any payments are made to
executives and has full discretion to adjust payments downwards if it believes circumstances warrant it.

Company performance and the link to incentives

During the 2014 year our emerging markets businesses have delivered strong organic revenue growth along with good
cash flow and adjusted EBITDA performance. However, this has been offset by significant ongoing competitive,
regulatory and macroeconomic pressures in our European operations where revenue has declined. Taken in the round
this led to slightly below target performance which is reflected in our annual bonus payout of 88.5% of target. More
details can be found on page 78.

Over the last three years our adjusted free cash flow performance, although strong in our emerging markets, has been
below our target levels in Europe for similar reasons to those described above. However, we have taken significant
strategic steps which have led to strong growth in the share price and Total Shareholder Return ( TSR ) which, when

combined with adjusted free cash flow, result in a payout for the executive directors long-term incentive awards of
37.2% of maximum. More details can be found on page 79. Strategic initiatives include:

g the sale of our 45% stake in Verizon Wireless;

g the record US$85 billion return to shareholders;

g the announcement of Project Spring  the acceleration of our capital investment to strengthen further our network
and customer experience;

g the acquisition of a leading cable operator in Germany as well as fixed line businesses such as CWW and
TelstraClear;

Table of Contents 130



Edgar Filing: VODAFONE GROUP PUBLIC LTD CO - Form 20-F

g launching Vodafone Red which is now available in 20 markets; and

g developing our M-Pesa footprint.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Letter from the Remuneration Committee Chairman (continued)
Key decisions on executive remuneration

The Remuneration Committee considers every decision around executive director remuneration very carefully. Some

of

the major decisions made this year were as follows:

Nick Read was promoted to Chief Financial Officer during the year and we determined his new remuneration
package. Our decision to give Nick a base salary of £675,000 was made in the context of the existing executive
directors remuneration levels and reviewed against the external market;

the Remuneration Committee considered the impact of the Verizon Wireless transaction and Project Spring on
executive remuneration and decided to remove the impact of Project Spring on pre-existing long-term incentive
awards to ensure an appropriate comparison to the original targets that were set. Please see page 84 for more
details;

we decided to reduce the maximum vesting level of our long-term incentive opportunity for our Executive
Committee. For the 2015 long-term incentive awards, the maximum vesting level will reduce from three times to
two and a half times the target vesting level. We have also introduced a mandatory holding period where 50% of
the post-tax shares are released after vesting, a further 25% after the first anniversary of vesting, and the remaining
25% will be released after the second anniversary;

following a review of the pension levels in the context of pension provision for our broader employee population,
from November 2015 pension levels for our Executive Committee will reduce from 30% of salary to 24% of salary.
This brings our Executive Committee pension level in line with our UK senior management; and
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g the Remuneration Committee took account of business performance, salary increases for other UK employees and
external market information when deciding to increase the annual base salaries of the Chief Executive (Vittorio
Colao) and the Chief Technology Officer (Stephen Pusey) by 3.6% and 4.3% respectively from 1 July 2014. This is
the first salary increase that either individual has received for three years.

Assessment of risk

One of the activities of the Remuneration Committee is to continually be aware and mindful of any potential risk
associated with our reward programmes. Vodafone seeks to provide a structure of rewards that encourages acceptable
risk taking and high performance through optimal pay mix, performance metrics and calibration, and timing. With that
said, it is prudent practice to ensure that our reward programmes achieve this and do not encourage excessive or
inappropriate risk taking. The Committee has considered the risk involved in the incentive schemes and is satisfied
that the design elements and governance procedures mitigate the principal risks.

Share ownership

For many years Vodafone has had demanding share ownership goals for our executive directors. These goals, and our
achievement against the goals, are set out on page 80. We are delighted that, collectively, our Executive Committee
own shares with a value of over £50 million. We are proud that the high level of shareholding by our Executive
Committee has been maintained despite the Verizon Wireless transaction and the associated share consolidation. After
the transaction our Executive Committee members individually elected to reinvest the vast majority of their post-tax
proceeds from the transaction back into Vodafone shares. Owning shares is part of our culture and each year we
expect the number of shares owned by our Executive Committee members to grow. This level of ownership

by management clearly shows their alignment with shareholders but also indicates their belief in the long-term value
creation opportunities of our shares.

Consultation with shareholders

The Remuneration Committee continues to have dialogue with our shareholders. The views of all shareholders are
taken seriously, and letters and emails are replied to promptly. In addition, during the year we invited our largest
shareholders to meet with me in person and the resulting meetings were very helpful for us to better understand our
shareholders viewpoint. We were delighted that last year the remuneration report received a 96.36% vote in favour.
This compares with 96.44% support in the prior year. We sincerely hope to receive your continued support at the
AGM on 29 July 2014.

/s/ Luc Vandevelde

Luc Vandevelde

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

20 May 2014

Contents of the remuneration report
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Remuneration polic

In this forward-looking section we describe our remuneration policy for the Board. This includes our considerations
when determining policy, a description of the elements of the reward package and an indication of the potential future
value of this package for each of the executive directors. In addition we describe our policy applied to the Chairman
and non-executive directors.

We will be seeking shareholder approval for our remuneration policy at the 2014 AGM and we intend to implement at
that point. We do not envisage making any changes to our policy over the next three years, however, we will review it
each year to ensure that it continues to support our Company strategy. If we feel it is necessary to make a change to
our policy within the next three years, we will seek shareholder approval.

Considerations when determining remuneration policy

Our remuneration principles which are outlined on page 69 are the context for our policy. Our principal consideration
when determining remuneration policy is to ensure that it supports our Company strategy and business objectives.

The views of our shareholders are also taken into account when determining executive pay. In advance of asking for
approval for the remuneration policy we have consulted with our major shareholders. We invited our top 20
shareholders to comment on remuneration at Vodafone and several meetings between shareholders and the
Remuneration Committee Chairman took place. The main topics of consultation were as follows:

g new share plan rules for which we will seek shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM,;

g changes to executive remuneration arrangements (reduction of maximum long-term incentive vesting levels and
pension provision); and

g impact of Project Spring on Free Cash Flow performance under the global long-term incentive plan ( GLTI ).

We have not consulted with employees on the executive remuneration policy nor is any fixed remuneration
comparison measurement used. However, when determining the policy for executive directors, we have been mindful
of the pay and employment conditions of employees in Vodafone Group as a whole, with particular reference to the
market in which the executive is based. Further information on our remuneration policy for other employees is given
on page 74.
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Performance measures and targets

Our Company strategy and business objectives are the primary consideration when we are selecting performance
measures for our incentive plans. The targets within our incentive plans that are related to internal financial measures
(such as revenue, profit and cash flow) are typically determined based on our budgets. Targets for strategic and

external measures (such as competitive performance and Total Shareholder Return ( TSR )) are set based on Company
objectives and in light of the competitive marketplace. The threshold and maximum levels of performance are set to
reflect minimum acceptable levels at threshold and very stretching but achievable levels at maximum.

As in previous remuneration reports we will disclose the details of our performance targets for our short and long-term
incentive plans. However, our annual bonus targets are commercially sensitive and therefore we will only disclose our
targets in the remuneration report following the completion of the financial year. We will disclose the targets for each
long-term award in the remuneration report for the financial year preceding the start of the performance period.

At the end of each performance period we review performance against the targets, using judgement to account for
items such as (but not limited to) mergers, acquisitions, disposals, foreign exchange rate movements, changes in
accounting treatment, material one-off tax settlements etc. The application of judgement is important to ensure that the
final assessments of performance are fair and appropriate.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee reviews the incentive plan results before any payments are made to
executives or any shares vest and has full discretion to adjust the final payment or vesting downwards if they believe
circumstances warrant it. In particular, the Committee may use discretion to clawback any unvested share award (or
vested but unexercised options) as it sees appropriate, in which case the award may lapse wholly or in part, may vest
to a lesser extent than it would otherwise have vested or vesting may be delayed.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Remuneration policy (continued)

The remuneration policy table

The table below summarises the main components of the reward package for executive directors.

Purpose and link to strategy
Base salary g To attract and retain the best
talent.

Table of Contents

Operation
g Salaries are usually reviewed
annually

and fixed for 12 months commencing
1 July. Decision is influenced by:

g level of skill, experience and
scope of

responsibilities of individual;

g business performance, scarcity of

talent, economic climate and market
conditions;
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g increases elsewhere within the
Group;

and

g external comparator groups (which
are

used for reference purposes only)
made up of companies of similar size
and complexity to Vodafone.
Pension g To remain competitive within g Executive directors may choose to
the
participate in the defined contribution
marketplace. pension scheme or to receive a cash
allowance in lieu of pension.

Benefits g To aid retention and remain g Travel related benefits. This may
competitive include
within the marketplace.
(but is not limited to) company car or
cash allowance, fuel and access to a
driver where appropriate.

g Private medical, death and
disability

insurance and annual health checks.

g In the event that we ask an
individual to

relocate we would offer them support
in line with Vodafone s relocation or
international assignment policies.
This may cover (but is not limited to)
relocation, cost of living allowance,
housing, home leave, education
support, tax equalisation and advice.
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g Legal fees if appropriate.

g Other benefits are also offered in
line with

the benefits offered to other
employees for example, all-employee
share plans, mobile phone discounts,
maternity/paternity benefits, sick
leave, paid holiday, etc.

Annual Bonus g To drive behaviour and g Bonus levels and the
communicate appropriateness of
Global Short-
the key priorities for the year. measures and weightings are
Term Incentive reviewed annually to ensure they

continue to support our strategy.
Plan ( GSTIP )

g To motivate employees and
incentivise
g Performance over the financial
delivery of performance over the year is
one year operating cycle.
measured against stretching financial
and non-financial performance targets
set at the start of the financial year.

g The financial metrics are

designed to

both drive our growth strategies g The annual bonus is usually paid
whilst also focusing on improving in cash

operating efficiencies. Measuring

competitive performance with its in June each year for performance
heavy reliance on net promoter over the previous financial year.

score ( NPS ) means providing a
great customer experience remains
at the heart of what we do.
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Long-Term Incentive g To motivate and incentivise
Global Long-Term delivery

Incentive Plan ( GLTI ) base

awards and co-investment of sustained performance over the
awards (further details can long term.

be found in the notes that

follow this table)

g To support and encourage
greater

shareholder alignment through a
high level of personal financial
commitment.

g The use of free cash flow as the

principal performance measure
ensures we apply prudent cash
management and rigorous capital
discipline to our investment
decisions, whilst the use of TSR
along with a performance period of
not less than three years means that
we are focused on the long-term
interests of our shareholders.

Table of Contents

g Award levels and the framework
for

determining vesting are reviewed
annually to ensure they continue to
support our strategy.

g Long-term incentive base awards
consist

of performance shares which are
granted each year.

g Individuals must co-invest in
Vodafone

shares and hold them in trust for at

least three years in order to receive
the full target award.

g All awards vest not less than three
years

after the award based on Group

operational and external performance.

g Dividend equivalents are paid in
cash

after the vesting date.
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Opportunity
g Average salary increases for existing Executive Committee
members (including

executive directors) will not normally exceed average increases for
employees in other appropriate parts of the Group. Increases above
this level may be made in specific situations. These situations
could include (but are not limited to) internal promotions, changes
to role, material changes to the business and exceptional company
performance.

g The pension contribution or cash payment is equal to 30% of
annual gross salary.
In light of pension levels elsewhere in the Group we have decided to

reduce the pension benefits level from 30% to no more than 24%
from November 2015.

g Benefits will be provided in line with appropriate levels indicated
by local market

practice in the country of employment.

g We expect to maintain benefits at the current level but the value
of benefit may

fluctuate depending on, amongst other things, personal situation,
insurance premiums and other external factors.

Table of Contents

Performance metrics
None.

None.

None.
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g Bonuses can range from 0 200% of base salary, with 100% g Performance over each

paid for on-target financial year

performance. Maximum is only paid out for exceptional is measured against stretching

performance. targets set at the beginning of
the year.

g The performance measures
normally

comprise of a mix of financial
and strategic measures.
Financial measures may include
(but are not limited to) profit,
revenue and cash flow with a
weighting of no less than 50%.
Strategic measures may include
(but are not limited to)
competitive performance
metrics such as net promoter
score and market share.

g The basic target award level is 137.5% of base salary for the g Performance is measured

Chief Executive against

(110% for other executive directors). stretching targets set at the
beginning of the performance
period.

g The target award level may increase up to 237.5% of base salary
for the Chief
g Vesting is determined based
Executive (or 210% for others) if the individual commits to a ona
co-investment in shares equal in value to their base salary.
matrix of two measures:

g Minimum vesting is 0% of target award level, threshold vesting is

50% and g adjusted free cash flow as
our

maximum vesting is 250% of the target award level.
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operational performance
measure; and

g Maximum long-term incentive face value at award of 594% of

base salary for the

Chief Executive (237.5% x 250%) and 525% for others. g relative TSR against a peer
group of companies as our
external performance measure.

g The awards that vest accrue cash dividend equivalents over the

three year

vesting period.

g Awards vest to the extent performance conditions are satisfied.
There is a

mandatory holding period where 50% of the post-tax shares are
released after vesting, a further 25% after the first anniversary of
vesting, and the remaining 25% will be released after the second
anniversary.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Remuneration policy (continued)

Notes to the remuneration policy table

Existing arrangements

We will honour existing awards to executive directors, and incentives, benefits and contractual arrangements made to
individuals prior to their promotion to the Board. This will last until the existing incentives vest (or lapse) or the
benefits or contractual arrangements no longer apply.

Long-Term Incentive ( GLTI )

When referring to our long-term incentive awards we use the financial year end in which the award was made. For
example, the 2013 award was made in the financial year ending 31 March 2013. The awards are usually made in the

first half of the financial year (the 2013 award was made in July 2012).

The extent to which awards vest depends on two performance conditions:

g underlying operational performance as measured by adjusted free cash flow; and
g relative Total Shareholder Return ( TSR ) against a peer group median.

Adjusted free cash flow

The free cash flow performance is based on the cumulative adjusted free cash flow figure over the performance

period. The detailed targets and the definition of adjusted free cash flow are determined each year as appropriate. The
target adjusted free cash flow level is set by reference to our long-range plan and market expectations. We consider

the targets to be critical to the Company s long-term success and its ability to maximise shareholder value, and to be in
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line with the strategic goals of the Company. The Remuneration Committee sets these targets to be sufficiently
demanding with significant stretch where only outstanding performance will be rewarded with a maximum payout.

The cumulative adjusted free cash flow vesting levels as a percentage of target are shown in the table below (with
linear interpolation between points):

Performance Vesting percentage
Below threshold 0%
Threshold 50%
Target 100%
Maximum 125%

TSR outperformance of a peer group median

We have a limited number of appropriate peers and this makes the measurement of a relative ranking system volatile.
As such, the outperformance of the median of a peer group is felt to be the most appropriate TSR measure. The peer
group for the performance condition is reviewed each year and amended as appropriate.

The relative TSR position determines the performance multiplier. This will be applied to the adjusted free cash flow
vesting percentage. There will be no multiplier until TSR performance exceeds median. Above median, the following
table will apply (with linear interpolation between points):

Multiplier
Median No increase
Percentage outperformance of the peer group median equivalent to 65th percentile 1.5 times
Percentage outperformance of the peer group median equivalent to 80th percentile 2.0 times

In order to determine the percentages for the equivalent outperformance levels above median, the Remuneration
Committee seeks independent external advice.

Combined vesting matrix

The combination of the two performance measures gives a combined vesting matrix as follows (with linear
interpolation between points):

TSR outperformance
Up to 65th percentile ~ 80th percentile

Adjusted free cash flow measure Median equivalent equivalent
Below threshold 0% 0% 0%
Threshold 50% 75% 100%
Target 100% 150% 200%
Maximum 125% 187.5% 250%

The combined vesting percentages are applied to the target number of shares granted.

Outstanding awards
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For the awards made in the 2013 and 2014 financial years (vesting in July 2015 and June 2016 respectively) the award
structure is as set out above, except that the maximum vesting percentage for cumulative adjusted free cash flow was
150% leading to an overall maximum of 300% of target award.

Remuneration policy for other employees

While our remuneration policy follows the same fundamental principles across the Group, packages offered to
employees reflect differences in market practice in the different countries, role and seniority.

For example, the remuneration package elements for our executive directors are essentially the same as for the other
Executive Committee members, with some small differences, for example higher levels of share awards. The
remuneration for the next level of management, our senior leadership team, again follows the same principles but with
differences such as local and individual performance aspects in the annual bonus targets and performance share
awards. They also receive lower levels of share awards which are partly delivered in restricted shares.

Table of Contents 146



Edgar Filing: VODAFONE GROUP PUBLIC LTD CO - Form 20-F

Table of Conten

75

Estimates of total future potential remuneration from 2015 pay packages

The tables below provide estimates of the potential future remuneration for each of the executive directors based on
the remuneration opportunity granted in the 2015 financial year. Potential outcomes based on different performance
scenarios are provided for each executive director.

The assumptions underlying each scenario are described below.

Fixed Consists of base salary, benefits and pension.
Base salary is at 1 July 2014.
Benefits are valued using the figures in the total remuneration for the 2014 financial year table
on page 78 (of the 2014 report) and on a similar basis for Nick Read (promoted to the Board
on 1 April 2014).
Pensions are valued by applying cash allowance rate of 30% of base salary at 1 July 2014.

Base Benefits Pension Total fixed
(£ 000) (£ 000) (£ 000) (£ 000)
Chief Executive 1,150 38 345 1,533
Chief Financial Officer 675 23 203 901
Chief Technology Officer 600 21 180 801
On target Based on what a director would receive if performance was in line with plan.

The target award opportunity for the annual bonus ( GSTIP ) is 100% of base salary.
The target award opportunity for the long-term incentive ( GLTI ) is 237.5% of base salary for
the Chief Executive and 210% for others. We assumed that TSR performance was at median.
Maximum Two times the target award opportunity is payable under the annual bonus ( GSTIP ).
The maximum levels of performance for the long-term incentive ( GLTI ) are 250% of target
award opportunity. We assumed that TSR performance was at or above the 80th percentile
equivalent.
All scenarios Each executive is assumed to co-invest the maximum allowed under the long-term incentive
( GLTI ), 100% of salary, and the long-term incentive ( GLTI ) award reflects this.
Long-term incentives consist of share awards only which are measured at face value i.e. no
assumption for increase in share price or cash dividend equivalents payable.

Recruitment remuneration
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Our approach to recruitment remuneration is to pay no more than is necessary and appropriate to attract the right talent
to the role.

The remuneration policy table (pages 72 and 73) sets out the various components which would be considered for
inclusion in the remuneration package for the appointment of an executive director. Any new director s remuneration
package would include the same elements, and be subject to the same constraints, as those of the existing directors
performing similar roles. This means a potential maximum bonus opportunity of 200% of base salary and long-term
incentive maximum face value of opportunity at award of 594% of base salary.

When considering the remuneration arrangements of individuals recruited from external roles to the Board, we will
take into account the remuneration package of that individual in their prior role. We only provide additional
compensation to individuals for awards foregone. If necessary we will seek to replicate, as far as practicable, the level
and timing of such remuneration, taking into account also any remaining performance requirements applying to it.
This will be achieved by granting awards of cash or shares that vest over a timeframe similar to those forfeited and if
appropriate based on performance conditions. A commensurate reduction in quantum will be applied where it is
determined that the new awards are either not subject to performance conditions or subject to performance conditions
that are not as stretching as those of the awards forfeited.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Remuneration policy (continued)

Service contracts of executive directors

After an initial term of up to two years executive directors contracts have rolling terms and are terminable on no more
than 12 months notice.

The key elements of the service contract for executives relate to remuneration, payments on loss of office (see below),
and restrictions during active employment (and for 12 months thereafter). These restrictions include non-competition,
non-solicitation of customers and employees etc.

Additionally, all of the Company s share plans contain provisions relating to a change of control. Outstanding awards
and options would normally vest and become exercisable on a change of control to the extent that any performance
condition has been satisfied and pro-rated to reflect the acceleration of vesting.

Payments for departing executives

In the table below we summarise the key elements of our policy on payment for loss of office. We will of course,
always comply both with the relevant plan rules and local employment legislation.

Provision Policy

Notice period and g 12 months notice from the Company to the executive director.

compensation for loss of

office in service contracts

g Upto 12 months base salary (in line with the notice period). Notice period

payments will either be made as normal (if the executive continues to work during
the notice period or is on gardening leave) or they will be made as monthly
payments in lieu of notice (subject to mitigation if alternative employment is
obtained).
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Treatment of annual bonus The annual bonus will be pro-rated for the period of service during the financial
( GSTIP ) on termination year and will reflect the extent to which Company performance has been achieved.
under plan rules

g The Remuneration Committee has discretion to reduce the entitlement to an annual
bonus to reflect the individual s performance and the circumstances of the

termination.
Treatment of unvested g An executive director s award will vest in accordance with the terms of the plan
long-term incentive and satisfaction of performance conditions measured at the normal completion of
awards (  GLTI ) and the performance period, with the award pro-rated for the proportion of the vesting
co-investment awards on period that had elapsed at the date of cessation of employment.
termination under plan
rules
g The Remuneration Committee has discretion to vary the level of vesting as
deemed appropriate, and in particular to determine that awards should not vest in
the case of a bad leaver which may include, at their absolute discretion, departure
in case of poor performance, departure without the agreement of the Board, or
detrimental competitive activity.
Pension and benefits g Generally pension and benefit provisions will continue to apply until the

termination date.

g  Where appropriate other benefits may be receivable, such as (but not limited to)
payments in lieu of accrued holiday and legal fees or tax advice costs in relation to
the termination.

g Benefits of relative small value may continue after termination where appropriate,
such as (but not limited to) mobile phone provision.

In exceptional circumstances, an arrangement may be established specifically to facilitate the exit of a particular
individual albeit that any such arrangement would be made within the context of minimising the cost to the Group.
We will only take such a course of action in exceptional circumstances and where it is considered to be in the best
interests of shareholders.

Chairman and non-executive directors remuneration

Our policy is for the Chairman to review the remuneration of non-executive directors annually following consultation
with the Remuneration Committee Chairman. Fees for the Chairman are set by the Remuneration Committee.

Element Policy

Fees g We aim to pay competitively for the role including consideration
of the time commitment required. We benchmark the fees against
an appropriate external comparator group. We pay fees to our
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Chairman and Senior Independent Director that include fees for
chairmanship of any committees. We pay a fee to each of our
other non-executive directors and they receive an additional fee if
they chair a committee. Non-executive fee levels are set within the
maximum level as approved by shareholders as part of our articles
of association.

Allowances g An allowance is payable each time a non-Europe-based
non-executive director is required to travel to attend Board and
committee meetings to reflect the additional time commitment

involved.
Incentives g Non-executive directors do not participate in any incentive plans.
Benefits g Non-executive directors do not participate in any benefit plans.

The Company does not provide any contribution to their pension
arrangements. The Chairman is entitled to the use of a car and a
driver whenever and wherever he is providing his services to or
representing the Company. We have been advised that for
non-executive directors, certain travel and accommodation
expenses in relation to attending Board meetings should be treated
as a taxable benefit therefore we also cover the tax liability for
these expenses.

Non-executive director service contracts
Non-executive directors are engaged on letters of appointment that set out their duties and responsibilities.
The appointment of non-executive directors may be terminated without compensation. Non-executive directors are

generally not expected to serve for a period exceeding nine years. For further information refer to the Nomination and
Governance Committee section of the annual report (page 59).
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Annual report on remuneration

Remuneration Committee

In this section we give details of the composition of the Remuneration Committee and activities undertaken over the
2014 financial year. The Committee is comprised to exercise independent judgement and consists only of the
following independent non-executive directors:

Chairman: Luc Vandevelde
Committee members: Renee James; Samuel Jonah; Philip Yea

The Committee regularly consults with Vittorio Colao, the Chief Executive, and Ronald Schellekens, the Group HR
Director, on various matters relating to the appropriateness of awards for executive directors and senior executives,
though they are not present when their own compensation is discussed. In addition, Adrian Jackson, the Group
Reward and Policy Director, provides a perspective on information provided to the Committee, and requests
information and analyses from external advisors as required. Rosemary Martin, the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, advises the Committee on corporate governance guidelines and acts as secretary to the
Committee.

External advisors

The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.
The two appointed advisors were selected through a thorough process led by the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and were appointed by the Committee. The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee has direct access to
the advisors as and when required, and the Committee determines the protocols by which the advisors interact with
management in support of the Committee. The advice and recommendations of the external advisors are used as a
guide, but do not serve as a substitute for thorough consideration of the issues by each Committee member. Advisors
attend Committee meetings occasionally, as and when required by the Committee.

Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP ( PwC ) and Towers Watson are both members of the Remuneration Consultants Group
and, as such, voluntarily operate under the Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK. This is based upon principles of transparency, integrity, objectivity, competence,

due care and confidentiality by executive remuneration consultants. PwC and Towers Watson have confirmed that

they adhered to that Code of Conduct throughout the year for all remuneration services provided to Vodafone and
therefore the Committee are satisfied that they are independent and objective. The Remuneration Consultants Group
Code of Conduct is available at remunerationconsultantsgroup.com.
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Fees for services

provided to the

Services provided to the Other services provided to
Advisor Appointed by Committee Committee ( 000) the Company
Pricewaterhouse Remuneration Advice on market practice; £63 International mobility;
Governance; Finance;
Coopers LLP ( PwC Qommittee in 2007 Performance analysis; Plan Technology; Tax;
design Operations; Compliance
Towers Watson Remuneration Advice on market practice; £25 Pension and benefit
Committee in 2007 Governance; Provide administration; Reward
market data on executive consultancy

and non-executive reward;

Reward consultancy;

Performance analysis
Note:

1 Fees are determined on a time spent basis
PwC have been appointed as our auditors from April 2014 and therefore no longer advise the Remuneration
Committee. Towers Watson continue to act as independent remuneration advisors.

Philip Yea sat on an advisory board for PwC until 14th January 2014. In light of PwC s role as advisor to the
Remuneration Committee on remuneration matters up until April 2014, the Remuneration Committee considered his
position and determined that there was no conflict or potential conflict arising.

2013 AGM

The 2013 remuneration report received a 96.36% vote in favour of a total of 31,950,649,494 votes cast (3.64% votes
against and 436,513,724 votes were withheld).

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee had six formal meetings during the year. Outside these meetings there are frequent
discussions usually by conference call. The principal agenda items at the formal meetings were as follows:

Meeting Agenda items
May 2013 g 2013 annual bonus achievement and 2014 targets and g 2013 directors remuneration report.
ranges.
g 2011 long-term incentive award vesting and 2014 targets g Review of the effectiveness of the
and ranges. Committee.
July 2013 g 2014 long-term incentive awards. g Large local market CEO
remuneration.
September 2013 g Impact of the Verizon Wireless transaction on reward
arrangements.
November 2013 g 2015 reward strategy. g Impact of the Verizon transaction
and
g 2014 long-term incentive awards, share ownership levels,  Project Spring on incentives.
accounting costs and dilution levels. g New share plan rules.
g g
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Reduction of maximum leverage on future long-term New remuneration reporting
incentive regulations.
awards from 300% to 250% of target. g Remuneration package for Nick
Read
g Reduction of pension levels from November 2015 from and departure arrangements for
30% Andy
to 24% of base salary. Halford.
January 2014 g 2015 annual bonus framework. g Feedback from shareholder
consultation.
g Non-executive director fee levels. g Committee advisors for 2015.
March 2014 g 2015 reward packages for the Executive Committee and g 2014 directors remuneration report.
Chairman s fees. g 2015 long-term incentive awards.
g Risk assessment. g Committee s effectiveness and terms
of reference.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Annual report on remuneration (continued)
2014 remuneration

In this section we summarise the pay packages awarded to our executive directors for performance in the 2014

financial year versus 2013. Specifically we have provided a table that shows all remuneration that was earned by each
individual during the year and computed a single total remuneration figure for the year. The value of the annual bonus

( GSTIP ) was earned during the year but will be paid out in cash in the following year and the value of the long-term
incentive ( GLTI ) shows the share awards which will vest in June 2014 as a result of the performance through the three
year period ended at the completion of our financial year on 31 March 2014.

The Remuneration Committee reviews all incentive awards prior to payment and has full discretion to reduce awards

if it believes this is appropriate. The decision need not be on objective grounds. It should be noted that the
Remuneration Committee did not exercise discretion in determining the annual bonus ( GSTIP ) payout for this year or
in deciding the final vesting level of the long-term incentive awards (  GLTI ).

Total remuneration for the 2014 financial year

Vittorio Colao Andy Halford! Stephen Pusey
2013
2014 2014 2013 2014 2013
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Salary/fees 1,110 1,110 700 700 575 575
Taxable benefits? 38 39 47 45 21 21
Annual bonus: GSTIP (see below for further
detail) 982 731 620 461 509 379
Total long-term incentive?: 6,464 8,886 2,424 5,164 2,164 2,842
GLTI vesting during the year? 5,630 7,573 2,111 4,401 1,885 2,422
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Cash in lieu of GLTI dividends> 834 1,313 313 763 279
Cash in lieu of pension 333 333 210 210 173
Total 8,927 11,099 4,001 6,580 3,442
Notes:

1 Andy Halford retired on 31 March 2014.
2 Taxable benefits include amounts in respect of:  Private healthcare (2014: £1,734; 2013: £1,500);
Cash car allowance £19,200 p.a.;

420
173
3,990

Travel (2014: Vittorio Colao £17,155; Andy Halford £13,848; 2013 (restated):

Vittorio Colao £17,921; Andy Halford
£24,626; and Stephen Pusey £408); and

Payment in lieu of holiday at retirement (2014: Andy Halford £11,936).
3 Excludes shares acquired under Vodafone s Share Incentive Plan ( SIP ). Andy Halford is the only director who

participated and the annual value of the matching shares is £1,500.

4 The value shown in the 2013 column is the award which vested on 28 June 2013 and is valued using the execution
share price on 28 June 2013 of 188.03 pence. Please note that the values disclosed in this table in 2013 are slightly
different as the value was based on a share price at 31 March 2013 of 186.60 pence. The value shown in the 2014
column is the award which vests on 28 June 2014 and is valued using an average of the closing share price over the

last quarter of the 2014 financial year of 234.23 pence. More details are included below.

5 Participants also receive a cash award, equivalent in value to the dividends that would have been paid during the
vesting period on any shares that vest. The cash in lieu of dividend value shown in 2013 relates to the award which

vested on 28 June 2013, and the value for 2014 relates to the award which vests on 28 June 2014.
2014 annual bonus ( GSTIP ) payout

In the table below we disclose our achievement against each of the performance measures and targets in our annual

bonus ( GSTIP ) and the resulting total annual bonus payout level for the year ended 31 March 2014 of
applied to the target bonus level of 100% of base salary for each executive.

Payout Payout Target Actual

at at performpexformance

targetnaximum  Actual level levell
performampmsrformance  payout

88.5%. This is

Performance measure 100%  200% %  £bn  £bn Commentary

Service revenue on a

management basis 25% 50% 15.6% 394 38.7 Below target performance in Europe

Adjusted EBITDA 25% 50% 12.4% 1277 12.3  Below target performance in Europe partially

offset by AMAP

Adjusted free cash flow 25% 50%  45.1% 4.2 4.7 Strong performance in AMAP

Competitive performance

assessment 25% 50%  15.4% Compilation of Consolidated performance below target
market-by-market although the number of markets where net

assessment promoter score ( NPS ) ranks #1 increased
Total annual bonus
payout level 100% 200%  88.5%
Note:

1 These figures are adjusted to include the removal of the impact of M&A, foreign exchange movements and any

changes in accounting treatment.
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2014 payout
Joodtual payment

Target bonus

2015 annual bonus ( GSTIP ) amounts Base sald#yof base salary

Vittorio Colao 1,110,000 100%
Andy Halford 700,000 100%
575,000 100%

Stephen Pusey
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88.5%
88.5%
88.5%

( 000)
£982
£620
£509
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Long-term incentive ( GLTI ) award vesting in June 2014

The 2012 long-term incentive ( GLTI ) awards which were made in June 2011 will partially vest in June 2014. The
performance conditions for the three year period ending in the 2014 financial year are as follows:

TSR outperformance

0% 4.5% 9%

(Up to (65th percentile (80th percentile
Adjusted free cash flow measure £bn median) equivalent) equivalent)
Below threshold <16.7 0% 0% 0%
Threshold 16.7 50% 75% 100%
Target 19.2 100% 150% 200%
Maximum 21.7 200% 300% 400%
TSR peer group
BT Group Telecom Italia
Deutsche Telekom Telefénica
Orange

Emerging market composite (consists of the average
TSR performance of Bharti, MTN and Turkcell)

Adjusted free cash flow for the three-year period ended on 31 March 2014 was £17.9 billion which compares with a
threshold of £16.7 billion and a target of £19.2 billion.

The chart to the right shows that our TSR performance against our peer group for the same period resulted in an
outperformance of the median by 22.3% a year.

Using the combined payout matrix above, this performance resulted in a payout of 148.8% of target (37.2% of the
maximum).

The combined vesting percentages are applied to the target number of shares granted as shown below.
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Adjusted free cash

flow

performance

2012 GLTI payout
performance share Maximum Target Overall vesting Value of
awards vesting in June  number of number % of TSR % of  Number othares vesting
2014 shares of shares target multiplier target! shares vesting ( 003
Vittorio Colao 6,461,396 1,615,349 74.4% 2 times 148.8% 2,403,638 £5,630
Andy Halford 2,643,290 660,822 74.4% 2 times 136.4% 901,361 £2,111
Stephen Pusey 2,162,990 540,747 74.4% 2 times 148.8% 804,632 £1,885

Notes:

1 Andy Halford retired on 31 March 2014. His award has been prorated for the 33 months he served during the 36
month vesting period.

2 Valued using an average of the closing share prices over the last quarter of the 2014 financial year of 234.23 pence.

These shares will vest on 28 June 2014. The adjusted free cash flow performance is audited by Deloitte LLP and

approved by the Remuneration Committee. The performance assessment in respect of the TSR outperformance of the

peer group median is undertaken by Towers Watson. Dividend equivalents will also be paid in cash after the vesting

date as shown on page 78. Details of how the plan works can be found on pages 72 to 74.

Long-term incentive ( GLTI ) awarded during the year
The 2014 long-term incentive awards made in July 2013 under the Global Long-Term Incentive Plan ( GLTI ) were

made in line with the 2014 policy as disclosed in our 2013 remuneration report. The performance conditions are a
combination of adjusted free cash flow and TSR performance as follows:

TSR outperformance

Adjusted free cash flow measure 0% 4.5% 9%
(Up to (65th percentile (80th percentile

£bn median) equivalent) equivalent)

Below threshold <124 0% 0% 0%

Threshold 12.4 50% 75% 100%

Target 14.4 100% 150% 200%

Maximum 16.4 150% 225% 300%

TSR peer group

AT&T Orange

BT Group Telecom Italia

Deutsche Telekom Telefénica

Emerging market composite (consists of the average
TSR performance of Bharti, MTN and Turkcell)

The combined vesting percentages are applied to the target number of shares granted.

In order to participate fully in this award, executives had to co-invest personal shares worth 100% of salary. The
resulting awards to executive directors were as follows:
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Number of shares Face value of shares
awarded awarddportion of
Target

vesting maximum award
level Maximum Target Wstimgmatminimum  Performan
4 GLTI performance share awards made in July 20131/3rd of max) vesting level vesting level vesting lepeidformance period e
orio Colao 1,395,123 4,185,370 £2,636,249 £7,908,748  1/6th 31 Mar 20
ly Halford 772,981 2,318,945 £1,469,998 £4,409,998 1/6th 31 Mar 20
hen Pusey 634,948 1,904,846 £1,207,497 £3,622,495 1/6th 31 Mar 20

Note:

1 Face value calculated based on the share prices at the dates of grant of 180.2 pence and 202.5 pence
Dividend equivalents on the shares that vest are paid in cash after the vesting date.
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Directors remuneration (continued)

Annual report on remuneration (continued)

All-employee share plans

The executive directors are also eligible to participate in the UK all-employee plans.

Summary of plans

Sharesave

The Vodafone Group 2008 Sharesave Plan is an HM Revenue & Customs ( HMRC ) approved scheme open to all staff
permanently employed by a Vodafone Company in the UK as of the eligibility date. Options under the plan are

granted at up to a 20% discount to market value. Executive directors participation is included in the option table on
page 81.

Share Incentive Plan

The Vodafone Share Incentive Plan ( SIP ) is an HMRC approved plan open to all staff permanently employed by a
Vodafone Company in the UK. Participants may contribute up to a maximum of £125 per month (or 5% of salary if
less) which the trustee of the plan uses to buy shares on their behalf. An equivalent number of shares are purchased
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with contributions from the employing company. UK-based executive directors are eligible to participate.

Pensions

Vittorio Colao, Andy Halford and Stephen Pusey received a cash allowance of 30% of base salary in lieu of pension
contributions during the 2014 financial year. No executive directors accrued benefits under any defined contribution
pension plans during the year.

The executive directors are provided benefits in the event of death in service. They also have an entitlement under a
long-term disability plan from which two-thirds of base salary, up to a maximum benefit determined by the insurer,
would be provided until normal retirement date (aged 60).

Andy Halford retired on 31 March 2014 aged 55. Until 2010, he participated in a legacy defined benefit pension plan
into which no additional contributions were payable in 2014. On 31 March 2010 he took the opportunity to take early
retirement from this pension scheme due to the closure of the scheme (aged 51 years). In accordance with the scheme
rules, his accrued pension at this date was reduced with an early retirement factor for four years to reflect the fact that
his pension is being paid before age 55 and is therefore expected to be paid out for a longer period of time. In addition,
he exchanged part of his early retirement pension at 31 March 2010 for a tax-free cash lump sum of £118,660. The
pension in payment at 31 March 2010 was £17,800 per year. The pension increased on 1 April 2011, 1 April 2012 and
1 April 2013 by 5%, in line with the scheme rules, to £20,605 per year from 1 April 2013.

Alignment to shareholder interests

All of our executive directors have shareholdings in excess of their goals. Current levels of ownership by the
executive directors, and the date by which the goal should be or should have been achieved, are shown below. The
values are calculated using an average share price over the six months to 31 March 2014 of 229.32 pence. These
values do not include the value of the shares that will vest in June 2014.

Value
of
% of goal Numbeshareholding Date for
Goalasa %  Current % goal
At 31 March 2014 of salary of salary held achieved of shares! (£m) to be achieved
Vittorio Colao 400% 1,875% 469% 9,077,302 20.8 July 2012
Andy Halford (ownership position at
retirement on 31 March 2014) 300% 755% 252% 2,305,059 5.3 July 2010
Stephen Pusey 300% 630% 210% 1,579,543 3.6 June 2014
Note:

1 During the year the Verizon transaction and a share consolidation took place.
Collectively the Executive Committee including the executive directors own more than 22 million Vodafone shares,
with a value of over £50 million.

Directors interests in the shares of the Company
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A summary of interests in shares and scheme interests of the directors who served during the year is given below.

More details of the performance shares and options follows.

Share plans Shares options

Unvested GLTI Shares
Total (S8htlre Incentive Plan SAYE
number (witho@nvested without
of interests performance  performance performance
At 31 March 2014 in shares! conditions) conditions) conditions)
Executive directors
Vittorio Colao 24,251,716 15,157,846 16,568
Andy Halford (position at retirement on 31 March
2014) 8,561,152 6,249,860 17,014 6,233
Stephen Pusey 7,719,776 6,140,233
Total 40,532,644 27,547,939 17,014 22,801
Note:

1 Includes shares in the share incentive plan (SIP), interests of connected persons, unvested share awards and share
options. During the year the Verizon transaction and a share consolidation took place.
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At 31 March 2014

Non-executive directors
Valerie Gooding
Renee James

Alan Jebson
Samuel Jonah
Gerard Kleisterlee
Omid Kordestani
Nick Land

Anne Lauvergeon
Luc Vandevelde
Anthony Watson
Philip Yea

Note:

1 During the year the Verizon transaction and a share consolidation took place.

81

Total number
of interests
in shares!

4,038
27,272
44,912
30,190
59,755

32,090
17,151
54,880
62,727
33,408

During the period from 1 April 2014 to 20 May 2014, the directors total number of interests in shares did not change.

Performance shares

The maximum number of outstanding shares that have been awarded to directors under the long-term incentive

( GLTI ) plan are currently as follows:

GLTI performance share awards 2012 award 2013 award
Awarded: June Awarded: July

2011 2012

Performance period ending: March 2015

Performance period ending: March 2014 Vesting date: July

2015

Vesting date: June
2014 Share price at
grant: 179.4 pence
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2014 award

Awarded: June 2013
and September 2013!

Performance period
ending: March 2016

Vesting date: June
2016
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Share price at Share price at grant: 180.2 pence and 202.5 pence

grant: 163.2 pence
Vittorio Colao 6,461,396 4,511,080 4,185,370
Andy Halford 2,643,290 1,287,625 2,318,945
Stephen Pusey 2,162,990 2,072,397 1,904,846

Note:

1 Due to a close period, executive directors were not able to make co-investment commitments at the time of the
main award in June 2013 and therefore part of the award was made in September 2013.
For details of the performance conditions please see page 74.

Share options

No share options have been granted to directors during the year. The following information summarises the executive
directors options under the Vodafone Group 2008 Sharesave Plan ( SAYE ) and the Vodafone Group Incentive Plan
( GIP ). HMRC approved awards may be made under both of the schemes mentioned. No other directors have options
under any schemes.

Options under the Vodafone Group 2008 Sharesave Plan were granted at a discount of 20% to the market value of the
shares at the time of the grant. No other options may be granted at a discount.

Options Options
granted Optiolspsed
during exercightting

1 April the  during the the Market
2013014 2012014 Options price
or dafmeficial finaficiahcial  held at  Option Date from on
appointmentyear yeaBjedlarch 2014 price which exercise
Numbhenber Nuntbember Number Gain on
Grant date  of shdirdsares of shdrskares of shares  Pence! exercisable Expiry date  Pence exercise
Vittorio
Colao
GIP2 Jul 2007 3,003,575 (3,003,575) 167.80  Jul 2010 Jul 2017 213.16 £1,362,503
SAYE Jul 2009 16,568 16,568 93.85 Sep2014  Feb 2015
Total 3,020,143 (3,003,575) 16,568
Andy
Halford
GIP? Jul 2007 2,295,589 (2,295,589) 167.80  Jul 2010 Jul 2017  213.16 £1,041,392
SAYE Jul 2012 6,233 6,233 14437 Sep 2015  Feb 2016
Total 2,301,822 (2,295,589) 6,233
Stephen
Pusey
GIP3 Sep 2006 1,034,259 (1,034,259) 11375 Sep 2009 Aug2016 212.80 £1,024,417
GIP? Jul 2007 947,556 (947,556) 167.80  Jul 2010 Jul 2017  231.64 £ 604,888
Total 1,981,815 (1,981,815)
Notes:

1
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The closing trade share price on 31 March 2014 was 220.25 pence. The highest trade share price during the year
was 252.3 pence and the lowest price was 180.23 pence.

2 The performance condition on the options granted in July 2007 was a three year cumulative growth in adjusted
earnings per share. The options vested at 100% in July 2010.

3 The performance condition on the options granted in September 2006 was a three year cumulative growth in
adjusted earnings per share. The options vested at 100% in September 2009.
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Annual report on remuneration (continued)
Loss of office payments

Andy Halford retired on 31 March 2014. As per his contract Andy had a 12 month notice period which commenced on
1 October 2013. He worked six months of his notice period until the end of the financial year. We will be making
payments in lieu of notice each month for the remainder of Andy s notice period (1 April 2014 30 September 2014).
The total of these payments will be a maximum of £350,000 (six months salary) subject to mitigation if Andy were to
start a new executive role at another organisation.

Andy has worked for the full 2014 financial year and so he will receive his annual bonus payment in June 2014 (as
detailed on page 78).

The 2012, 2013 and 2014 GLTI awards (made in June 2011, July 2012, June 2013 and September 2013) will be
pro-rated on a time worked basis. These awards will vest, subject to performance, at their normal vesting date, in
accordance with the good leaver provisions in our share plan rules. The 2013 and 2014 GLTI awards will lapse if
Andy starts a new executive role at another organisation.

Andy will receive no further benefits aside from the provision of a SIM card for his personal use at the Company s
expense for a period of three years commencing 1 April 2014.

Payments to past directors

During the 2014 financial year, no payments were made, or benefits given, to past directors with value of greater than
our de minimis threshold (£5,000 p.a.).

Fees retained for external non-executive directorships
Executive directors may hold positions in other companies as non-executive directors and retain the fees. Andy

Halford is a non-executive director of Marks and Spencer Group plc and in accordance with Group policy he retained
fees for the year of £81,250.

Table of Contents 167



Edgar Filing: VODAFONE GROUP PUBLIC LTD CO - Form 20-F

Assessing pay and performance

In the table below we summarise the Chief Executive s single figure remuneration over the past five years, as well as
how our variable pay plans have paid out in relation to the maximum opportunity. This can be compared with the
historic TSR performance over the same period. The chart below shows the performance of the Company relative to
the STOXX Europe 600 Index over a five year period. The STOXX Europe 600 Index was selected as this is a
broad-based index that includes many of our closest competitors. It should be noted that the payout from the long-term
incentive plan is based on the TSR performance shown in the chart on page 79 and not this chart.

Financial year remuneration for Chief Executive (Vittorio Colao) 20101 2011 2012 2013 2014

Single figure of total remuneration £ 000 3,350 7,022 15,767 11,099 8,927
Annual variable element (actual award versus maximum

opportunity) 64% 62% 47% 33% 44%
Long-term incentive (vesting versus maximum opportunity) 25% 31% 100% 57% 37%
Note:

1 The single figure reflects share awards which were granted in 2006 and 2007, prior to his appointment to Chief
Executive in 2008.
Change in the Chief Executive s remuneration

In the table below we show the percentage change in the Chief Executive s remuneration (salary, taxable benefits and
annual bonus payment) between the 2013 and 2014 financial years compared to the average for other Vodafone Group
employees who are measured on comparable business objectives and who have been employed in the UK since 2013
(per capita). Vodafone has employees based all around the world and some of these individuals work in countries with
very high inflation therefore a comparison to Vodafone s UK based Group employees is more appropriate than to all
employees.

Percentage change from 2013 to 2014
Other Vodafone Group employees

Item Chief Executive: Vittorio Colao employed in the UK
Base salary 0% 3.7%
Taxable benefits -2.6% 1.5%
Annual bonus 34.3% 53.3%
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The chart below shows both the dividends distributed in the year and the total cost of remuneration in the Group.

For more details on dividends and expenditure on remuneration for all employees, please see pages 124 and 152

respectively.

2014 remuneration for the Chairman and non-executive directors

Chairman

Gerard Kleisterlee

Senior Independent Director

Luc Vandevelde

Non-executive directors

Valerie Gooding (appointed 1 February
2014)

Renee James?

Alan Jebson?

Samuel Jonah?

Omid Kordestani?

Nick Land

Anne Lauvergeon

Anthony Watson

Philip Yea

Former non-executive directors

Sir John Buchanan (retired 24 July 2012)
Total

Notes:

1
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Salary/fees
2014 2013
£ 000 £ 000
600 600
160 154
19
139 151
151 151
151 157
151 10
140 140
115 115
115 115
115 115
58
1,856 1,766

2014

£ 000

58

11

163

Benefits!
2013

£ 000

106

22

12
106
101

356

2014

£ 000

658

171

19
144
191
160
184
141
120
116
115

2,019

Total
2013

£ 000
706

176

163
257
258

10
140
124
115
115

58
2,122
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We have been advised that for non-executive directors, certain travel and accommodation expenses in relation to
attending Board meetings should be treated as a taxable benefit. The table above includes these travel expenses and
the corresponding tax contribution (restated for 2013).

2 Salary/fees include an additional allowance of £6,000 per meeting for directors based outside of Europe.
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Annual report on remuneration (continued)
2015 remuneration

Subject to shareholder approval at the 2014 AGM, we intend to implement the remuneration policy as set out on pages
71 to 76.

For the 2015 financial year the details are as follows:

2015 base salaries

The Remuneration Committee considered business performance, salary increases for other UK employees and
external market information and decided to increase the annual base salaries of the Chief Executive (Vittorio Colao)
and the Chief Technology Officer (Stephen Pusey) by 3.6% and 4.3% respectively from 1 July 2014. The last salary
increase that was received by these individuals was three years ago in July 2011. The average salary increase for

Executive Committee members will be 1.7%; this compares to the salary increase budget in the UK of 2%.

The annual salaries for 2015 (effective 1 July 2014) are as follows:

g Chief Executive: Vittorio Colao £1,150,000;

g Chief Financial Officer: Nick Read (from 1 April 2014) £675,000; and

g Chief Technology Officer: Stephen Pusey £600,000.

2015 annual bonus ( GSTIP )

The performance measures and weightings for 2015 are as follows:
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g Service revenue (25%);

¢ adjusted EBITDA (25%);

g adjusted free cash flow (25%); and

g competitive performance assessment (25%). This is an assessment encompassing both net promoter score ( NPS )
and market share against the competitors in each of our markets.

Annual bonus targets are commercially sensitive and therefore will be disclosed in the 2015 remuneration report
following the completion of the financial year.
Long-term incentive ( GLTI ) awards for 2015

As described in our policy on pages 72 to 74 the performance conditions are a combination of adjusted free cash flow
and TSR performance. The details for the 2015 award will be as follows (with linear interpolation between points):

TSR out performance TSR peer group

0% 5% 10% Bharti Orange
Adjusted free cash flow measure  (HififfthipedianiB6thgpévadanile equivalent) BT Group Telecom Italia
Below threshold <34 0% 0% 0% Deutsche Telekom Telefénica
Threshold 3.4 50% 75% 100% MTN
Target 5.1 100% 150% 200%
Maximum 6.8 125% 187.5% 250%

Note:
1 When considered on a like-for-like basis with targets for previous years (e.g. excluding the impact of Project
Spring) the adjusted cash flow target is £12.3 billion.

The combined vesting percentages are applied to the target number of shares granted.

We have made the following changes to the long-term incentive since the last award:

g the maximum vesting level has reduced from three times to two and a half times the target vesting level;

g a mandatory holding period has been introduced where 50% of the post-tax shares are released after vesting, a
further 25% after the first anniversary of vesting, and the remaining 25% will be released after the second
anniversary; and

g
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AT&T has been removed from the peer group, Bharti and MTN have been added as stand alone comparators and
the remaining emerging market proxy company (Turkcell) has also been removed.

Long-term incentive ( GLTI ) awards vesting
As discussed elsewhere in the annual report, Project Spring involves significant organic investment over the next two
years to enhance network and service leadership further. This investment will have a significant impact on adjusted

Free Cash Flow ( FCF ), which is the primary performance condition for the GLTI and we expect an initial drop in FCF
that will then build again as the investment pays off over the longer term. The impact is predicted as follows:

Financial year of award Performance period end Impact

2013 March 2015 Targets for the 2013 and 2014 awards were set prior to the
announcement of Project
2014 March 2016 Spring therefore we will remove the impact on FCF when

calculating the vesting results following the end of each
performance period.

2015 onwards March 2017 onwards The 2015 awards (and all future years) will have the full impact
of Project Spring included in the targets and no further
adjustments will be necessary.
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2015 remuneration for the Chairman and non-executive directors

For the 2015 review, the fees for our Chairman and non-executives have been benchmarked against a comparator
group of the FTSE 30 companies. Following the review there will be no increases to the fees of non-executive
directors. The Chairman s fees will be increased by 4.2% to £625,000 from 1 July 2014.

Fee payable (£ 000)
From 1 April

Position/role 2014
Chairman! 625
Senior Independent Director? 160
Non-executive director 115
Chairmanship of Audit and Risk Committee 25
Note:

1 The Chairman s fee also includes the fee for the Chairmanship of the Nominations and Governance Committee.

2 The Senior Independent Director s fees also include the fee for the Chairmanship of the Remuneration Committee.
For 2015, the allowance payable each time a non-Europe-based non-executive director is required to travel to attend
Board and committee meetings to reflect the additional time commitment involved is £6,000.

Further remuneration information
Dilution

All awards are made under plans that incorporate dilution limits as set out in the guidelines for share incentive

schemes published by the Association of British Insurers. The current estimated dilution from subsisting executive
awards is approximately 3.2% of the Company s share capital at 31 March 2014 (2.0% at 31 March 2013), whilst from
all-employee share awards it is approximately 0.6% (0.3% at 31 March 2013). This gives a total dilution of 3.8%

(2.3% at 31 March 2013).

Service contracts
The terms and conditions of appointment of our directors are available for inspection at the Company s registered
office during normal business hours and at the AGM (for 15 minutes prior to the meeting and during the meeting).

The executive directors have notice periods in their service contracts of 12 months. The non-executive directors letters
of appointment do not contain provision for notice periods or for compensation if their appointments are terminated.
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The executive directors will be proposed for election or re-election at the 2014 AGM.
/s/ Luc Vandevelde

Luc Vandevelde

On behalf of the Board

20 May 2014
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Directors report

Directors report

The Directors of your Company present their report together with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

This report has been prepared in accordance with requirements outlined within The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and forms part of the management report as
required under DTR4. Certain information that fulfils the requirements of the directors report can be found elsewhere
in this document and is referred to below. This information is incorporated into this directors report by reference.
Responsibility statement

As required under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules a statement made by the Board regarding the preparation of
the financial statements is set out on page 88. This statement also provides details regarding the disclosure of
information to the Company s auditors and management s report on internal control over financial information.

Going concern

The going concern statement required by the Listing Rules and the Code is set out in the Directors statement of
responsibility on page 89.

Strategic report
The strategic report is set out in pages 1 to 47 and is incorporated into this directors report by reference.
Directors and their interests

A full list of the individuals who were directors of the Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2014 is set
out below.
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Gerard Kleisterlee, Vittorio Colao, Andy Halford, Stephen Pusey, Valerie Gooding, Renee James, Alan Jebson,
Samuel Jonah, Omid Kordestani, Nick Land, Anne Lauvergeon, Luc Vandevelde, Anthony Watson and Philip Yea.

Details of each director s interests in the Company s ordinary shares, options held over ordinary shares, interests in
share options and long term incentive plans are set out in full on pages 69 to 85.

Directors conflicts of interest

Established within the Company is a procedure for managing and monitoring conflicts of interest for directors. Full
details of this procedure is set out on page 56.

Directors indemnities

Details of qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of the Company s directors can be found on page
57.

Corporate governance statement

Under Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7, a requirement exists for certain parts of the corporate governance
statement to be outlined in the directors report. This information is laid out in the corporate governance statement, on
pages 48 to 85.

Capital structure and rights attaching to shares

All information relating to the Company s capital structure, rights attaching to shares, dividends, the policy to
repurchase the Company s own shares and other shareholder information is contained on pages 182 to 189 and
incorporated into this directors report by reference.

Dividends

Full details of the Company s dividend policy and proposed final dividend payment for the year ended 31 March 2014,
are set out on page 124.

Sustainability

Information about the Company s approach to sustainability risks and opportunities is set out on pages 34 and 35. Also
included on these pages are details of our greenhouse gas emissions.

Political donations

No political donations under the Companies Act 2006 have been made during the financial year. The Group policy is
that no political donations be made or political expenditure incurred.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Disclosures relating to financial risk management objectives and policies, including our policy for hedging are set out
in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Exposure to price, credit, liquidity and cash flow risks
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Our disclosures relating to exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk are outlined in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Important events since the end of the financial year

Details of those important events affecting the Group which have occurred since the end of the financial year are set
out in the strategic report and note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Future developments within the Group
The strategic report contains details of likely future developments within the Group.
Research and development

Details of the Group s activities relating to research and development are contained in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Branches
As the Group is a global business there are activities operated through many jurisdictions.
Employee disclosures

Our disclosures relating to the employment of disabled persons, the number of women in senior management roles,
employee engagement and policies are included in Our people on pages 36 and 37.

By Order of the Board
/s/ Rosemary Martin
Rosemary Martin
Company Secretary

20 May 2014
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Separate financial statements required by Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Reporting our financial performance

We continue to review the format of our consolidated financial statements with the aim of making them clear and
easier to follow. This year, in addition to continuing with the integrated financial review which combines commentary
on certain items within the primary financial statements, we have changed the order and grouping of the notes to the
financial statements to help with the flow of information and focus on areas that we feel are key to understanding our
business. We have also placed accounting policies within the notes to the accounts to which they best relate. We hope

this format makes it easier for you to navigate to the information that is important to you.
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Directors statement of responsibility

The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations
and keeping proper accounting records. Detailed below are statements made by the directors in relation to their
responsibilities, disclosure of information to the Company s auditors, going concern and management s report on
internal control over financial reporting.

Financial statements and accounting records
Company law of England and Wales requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at the end of the financial year

and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing those financial statements the directors are required
to:

g select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

g make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

g present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

g state whether the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) as adopted for use in the EU and Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulations. The directors
also ensure that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ( IASB );

g state for the Company financial statements whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed; and

Table of Contents 181



Edgar Filing: VODAFONE GROUP PUBLIC LTD CO - Form 20-F

g prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company
and the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006 and for the consolidated financial statements, Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulation. They are also responsible for the system of internal control, for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and, hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Directors responsibility statement

The Board confirms to the best of its knowledge:

g the consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the IASB and IFRS as
adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group;

g the parent company financial statements, prepared in accordance with United Kingdom generally accepted
accounting practice, give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Company;
and

g the directors report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Group together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Having taken advice from the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board considers the report and accounts, taken as a
whole, as fair, balanced and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Company s performance, business model and strategy.

Neither the Company nor the directors accept any liability to any person in relation to the annual report except to the
extent that such liability could arise under English law. Accordingly, any liability to a person who has demonstrated
reliance on any untrue or misleading statement or omission shall be determined in accordance with section 90A and

schedule 10A of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Having made the requisite enquiries, so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as
defined by section 418(3) of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Company s auditor is unaware and the directors

have taken all the steps they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company s auditor is aware of that information.
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Going concern

The Group s business activities, performance, position and principal risks and uncertainties and how these are managed
are set out in the strategic report on pages 1 to 47. A range of mitigations for risks faced by the Group are included on
page 90.

In addition, the financial position of the Group is included within Commentary on the consolidated statement of cash

flows on page 103, Borrowings , Liquidity and capital resources and Capital and financial risk management in notes
21, 22 and 23 respectively to the consolidated financial statements, which include disclosure in relation to the Group s
objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its

financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has considerable financial resources, and the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its
business risks successfully. After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Further discussion on the basis of the going concern assessment by the directors is set out on page 200.
Management s report on internal control over financial reporting
As required by section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, management is responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Group. The Group s internal control over financial reporting
includes policies and procedures that:

g pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and
dispositions of assets;

g are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation
of financial statements in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU and IFRS as issued by the IASB, and that
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorisation of management and the directors of
the Company; and

g provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use or
disposition of the Group s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Any internal control framework, no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations including the possibility of
human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures, and may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the

risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or because the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting at 31 March 2014 based on

the original Internal Control Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission ( COSO ) in 1992. Based on management s assessment, management has concluded that internal
control over financial reporting was effective at 31 March 2014.

In 2013, COSO published an updated Internal Control Integrated Framework which will supersede the original
framework from 15 December 2014. Accordingly, the new framework will be implemented during the year ending

31 March 2015. The Group s existing controls will be mapped to the five components and 17 principles in the updated
Internal Control Integrated Framework. Any gaps will be evaluated and, where required, additional controls
identified, or existing controls enhanced.

The assessment excluded the internal controls over financial reporting relating to Kabel Deutschland Holding AG

( KDG ) because it became a subsidiary during the year, as described in note 28 Acquisitions and disposals . KDG will
be included in the Group s assessment at 31 March 2015. Key amounts consolidated for KDG at 31 March 2014 are
total assets of £9,741 million, net assets of £4,709 million and revenue and loss for the financial year of £735 million
and £242 million, respectively.

During the period covered by this document, there were no changes in the Group s internal control over financial
reporting that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the effectiveness of the internal
controls over financial reporting.

The Group s internal control over financial reporting at 31 March 2014 has been audited by Deloitte LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm who also audit the Group s consolidated financial statements. Their
audit report on internal control over financial reporting is on page 91.

By Order of the Board

/s/ Rosemary Martin

Rosemary Martin

Company Secretary

20 May 2014
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Risk mitigation

g Specific back-up and resilience requirements are built into our networks. We monitor our ability to replace strategic
equipment quickly in event of failure, and for high risk components, we maintain dedicated back-up equipment
ready for use. Dedicated access network equipment is installed on trucks ready to be moved on site if required.

Our critical infrastructure has been enhanced to prevent unauthorised access and reduce the likelihood and impact of a

successful attack. Network contingency plans are linked with our business continuity and disaster recovery plans

which are in place to cover the residual risks that cannot be mitigated. A crisis management team and escalation
processes are in place both nationally and internationally, and crisis simulations are conducted annually.

We also manage the risk of malicious attacks on our infrastructure using our global security operations centre that
provides 24/7 monitoring of our network in many countries.

g Both the hardware and software applications which hold or transmit confidential personal and business voice and
data traffic include security features. Security related reviews are conducted according to our policies and security
standards. Security governance and compliance is managed and monitored through software tools that are deployed
to all local markets and selected partner markets. Our data centres are managed to international information security
standards. Third party data security reviews are conducted jointly with our technology security and corporate
security functions.

g We will continue to promote our differentiated propositions by focusing on our points of strength such as network
quality, capacity and coverage, quality of customer service and the value of our products and services. We are
enhancing distribution channels to get closer to customers and using targeted promotions where appropriate to
attract and retain specific customers. We closely monitor and model competitor behaviour, network builds and
product offerings to understand future intentions so that we are able to react in a timely manner.

g We monitor political developments in our existing and potential markets closely, identifying risks in our current
and proposed commercial propositions. Regular reports are made to our Executive Committee on current political
and regulatory risks. These risks are considered in our business planning process, including the importance of
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competitive commercial pricing and appropriate product strategies. Authoritative and timely intervention is made at
both national and international level in respect of legislative, fiscal and regulatory proposals which we feel are not
in the interests of the Group. We have regular dialogue with trade groups that represent network operators and other
industry bodies to understand underlying political pressures.

g In some markets we are already providing fixed line telecommunication services (voice and broadband). In other
existing markets we actively look for opportunities to provide services beyond mobile through acquisition,
partnerships, or joint ventures.

We have also developed strategies which strengthen our relationships with customers by accelerating the introduction

of integrated voice, messaging and data price plans to avoid customers reducing their out of bundle usage through

internet/ Wi-Fi based substitution.

g We are closely monitoring international economic and currency situations. Executive Committee briefings have
been provided with specific actions identified to reduce the impact of the risk. We have developed a detailed
business continuity plan in the event of a country economic crisis leading to a banking system freeze and a need to
transition to a cash based operating system for a number of months.

g We have a global health and safety policy that includes standards for electromagnetic fields ( EMF ) that are
mandated in all our operating companies. We have a Group EMF Board that manages potential risks through cross
sector initiatives and which oversees a coordinated global programme to respond to public concern, and develop
appropriate advocacy related to possible precautionary legislation. We monitor scientific developments and engage
with relevant bodies to support the delivery and transparent communication of the scientific research agenda set by
the WHO.

g We have experience of acquiring and integrating businesses into the Group and for all significant transactions we
develop and implement a structured integration plan, led by a senior business leader. Integration plans are
systematically implemented and executed to ensure that revenue benefits and cost synergies are delivered and that
the acquired businesses are successfully integrated through the alignment of policies, processes and systems. The
progress against acquisition business cases and the status of integration plans is monitored and reviewed as part of
the Group s governance and performance management procedures.

g We regularly review the performance of key suppliers, both operationally and financially, across
individual markets and from the Group perspective. Other processes are in place to regularly identify and
manage suppliers at risk . Most supplier categories have business continuity plans in place in the event of
single supplier failure.

¢ We maintain constructive but robust engagement with the tax authorities and relevant government representatives,
as well as active engagement with a wide range of international companies and business organisations with similar
issues. Where appropriate we engage advisors and legal counsel to obtain opinions on tax legislation and principles.

g We review the carrying value of the Group s property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets at
least annually, or more frequently where the circumstances require, to assess whether carrying values can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows derived from such assets. This review considers the
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continued appropriateness of the assumptions used in assessing for impairment, including an assessment of
discount rates and long-term growth rates, future technological developments, and the timing and amount of future
capital expenditure. Other factors which may affect revenue and profitability (for example intensifying competition,
pricing pressures, regulatory changes and the timing for introducing new products or services) are also considered.
Discount rates are in part derived from yields on government bonds, the level of which may change substantially
period to period and which may be affected by political, economic and legal developments which are beyond our
control. For further details see Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 1
Basis of preparation to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

on internal control over financial reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Vodafone Group Plc and subsidiaries and applicable
joint ventures (the Group ) as of 31 March 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control  Integrated
Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described
in management s report on internal control over financial reporting, management excluded from its assessment the
internal control over financial reporting at Kabel Deutschland Holding AG, which became a subsidiary during the year
and which accounted for £9,741 million of total assets, £4,709 million of net assets, £735 million of revenue and

£242 million of loss for the financial year of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended
31 March 2014. Accordingly our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at Kabel
Deutschland Holding AG.

The Group s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying
management s report on internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Group s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by
the company s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Group maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
31 March 2014, based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 31 March 2014 prepared in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board. Our report dated 20 May 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ Deloitte LLP

Deloitte LLP

London

United Kingdom

20 May 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

on the consolidated financial statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm to the members of Vodafone Group Plc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Vodafone Group Plc and
subsidiaries (the Group ) as of 31 March 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated income statements, consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 March 2014. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Group s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Group as of 31 March 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended 31 March 2014, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board.

As discussed in note 1, the 2013 and 2012 financial statements have been restated for the adoption of IFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements and amendments to IAS 19, Employee Benefits. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Group s internal control over financial reporting as of 31 March 2014, based on the criteria established in
Internal Control Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated 20 May 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Group s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE LLP

Deloitte LLP
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London
United Kingdom

20 May 2014
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Consolidated income statement

for the years ended 31 March

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Share of results of equity accounted associates
and joint ventures

Impairment losses

Other income and expense

Operating (loss)/profit

Non-operating income and expense
Investment income

Financing costs

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Income tax credit/(expense)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year from
continuing operations

Profit for the financial year from discontinued

operations
Profit for the financial year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders
Non-controlling interes&s
Profit for the financial year
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Note

2014

£m

38,346
(27,942)

10,404
(3,033)
(4,245)

278
(6,600)
(717)
(3,913)
(149)

346
(1,554)
(5,270)

16,582

11,312

48,108
59,420

59,254
166
59,420

Restated!
2013

£m

38,041
(26,567)

11,474
(2,860)
(4,159)

575
(7,700)
468
(2,202)
10
305
(1,596)
(3,483)
(476)

(3,959)

4,616
657

413
244
657

Restated!
2012

£m

38,821
(27,201)

11,620
(2,755)
(4,031)

1,129
(4,050)
3,705
5,618

(162)
456

(1,768)
4,144

(705)

3,439

3,555
6,994

6,948
46
6,994
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Earnings/(loss) per share
From continuing operations:

Basic 42.10p (15.66p)

Diluted 41.77p (15.66p)
Total Group:

Basic 8 223.84p 1.54p

Diluted 8 222.07p 1.54p
Notes:

12.28p
12.14p

25.15p
24.87p

1 Restated to show the results of our US Group in discontinued operations, adoption of IFRS 11 and amendments to

IAS 19. See note 1 Basis of preparation for further details.
2 Profit attributable to non-controlling interests solely derives from continuing operations.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the years ended 31 March

Restated!
2014 2013
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 59,420 657
Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Losses on revaluation of available-for-sale
investments, net of tax (119) (73)
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of
tax (4,104) 362
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) transferred to the
income statement 1,493 1
Fair value gains transferred to the income
statement (25) (12)
Other, net of tax 4)
Total items that may be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent years (2,755) 274
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent years:
Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit
pension schemes, net of tax 37 (182)
Total items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent years 37 (182)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (2,718) 92
Total comprehensive income for the year 56,702 749
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders 56,711 604
Non-controlling interests ) 145
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Restated!
2012

£m
6,994

A7)
(3,673)

(681)

(10)

(4,381)

(263)
(263)

(4,644)
2,350

2,383
(33)
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56,702 749 2,350
Note:

1 Restated to show the results of our US Group in discontinued operations, adoption of IFRS 11 and amendments to
IAS 19. See note 1 Basis of preparation for further details.
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Commentary on the consolidated income statement

and statement of comprehensive income

The consolidated income statement includes the majority of our income and expenses for the year with the remainder
recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Further details on the major movements in the year are set out below:
Revenue

Revenue increased by 0.8% to £38.3 billion. The increase is driven by revenue growth in our AMAP region and
business acquisitions, partially offset by revenue declines in Europe due to challenging trading conditions and by
unfavourable exchange rate movements. Our operating results discussion on pages 40 to 45 provides further detail on
our revenue performance.

Operating loss

Our operating loss increased to £3.9 billion from £2.2 billion as lower impairment charges were offset by lower

revenue, higher customer costs and higher amortisation. During the year we recorded goodwill impairment charges of

£6.6 billion relating to our businesses in Germany, Spain, Portugal, Czech Republic and Romania (see note 4
Impairment losses ).

Income tax expense

We recorded an income tax credit on continuing operations of £16.6 billion compared with a £0.5 billion charge in

2013. The credit primarily arises from the recognition of £19.3 billion of deferred tax assets for tax losses in Germany
and Luxembourg partly offset by taxes arising from the disposal of the Group s investment in Verizon Wireless (see
note 6 Taxation ). Our effective tax rate decreased to -33.4% from 77.2%. Further information on how our effective tax
rate is determined is provided within the operating results discussion on page 44.

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations includes the £45.0 billion profit arising on the disposal of the Group s investment in Verizon
Wireless, £1.7 billion of dividends receivable since the disposal and the post-tax profits of the Group s share of
Verizon Wireless and entities in the US Group sold to Verizon Communications as part of the overall disposal
transaction up until 2 September 2013 when the proposed disposal was announced. The profit from discontinued
operations for the year ended 31 March 2014 has increased to £48.1 billion from £4.6 billion, primarily due to the
profit arising from the disposal of the Group s investment in Verizon Wireless. Further information is provided in note
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7 Discontinued operations and note 28 Acquisitions and disposals .

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations was 42.10 pence, an increase of 57.76 pence, driven by the
recognition of £19.3 billion of deferred tax assets for losses in Germany and Luxembourg. Total Group basic earnings
per share, which includes profits from discontinued operations, increased by 222.30 pence to 223.84 pence primarily
as a result of the £45.0 billion gain recognised on the disposal of the US Group.

Adjusted earnings per share, which is a non-GAAP measure used by management and which excludes items that we
do not view as being reflective of our performance, was 17.54 pence, a decrease of 12.8% compared to the prior year.
The reduction was primarily due to lower adjusted operating profits, partially offset by a reduction in the number of
the Group s shares due to the Group s share buyback programme.

Our calculation of the adjusted earnings on which we base our adjusted earnings per share calculation is set out within
the operating results on page 45. Note 8 Earnings per share provides information on the number of shares used for
determining earnings per share.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income records all of the income and losses generated for the year.
Further details on the major movements in the year are set out below:

Profit for the financial year

Profit for the financial year of £59.4 billion is recognised in the consolidated income statement and the reasons
underlying the £58.8 billion increase are provided above.

Foreign exchange differences, net of tax

Foreign exchange translation differences arise when we translate the results and net assets of our operating companies,
joint arrangements and associates, which transact their operations in foreign currencies including the euro, South
African rand and Indian rupee, into our presentation currency of sterling. The net movements in foreign exchange
rates resulted in a loss of £4.1 billion for the year compared with a gain in the previous year of £0.4 billion.

Foreign exchange losses/(gains) transferred to the income statement

The foreign exchange losses transferred to the income statement in the year ended 31 March 2014 relate to the
recycling of amounts in relation to our investment in Verizon Wireless and Vodafone Italy which were triggered,
respectively, by the disposal and the acquisition of a controlling stake.

Net actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit schemes, net of tax

We realised a £37 million post-tax gain from the revaluation of the Group s defined benefit pension schemes after
updating actuarial assumptions and revaluing scheme assets.

The financial commentary on this page is unaudited.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

at 31 March

Note
Non-current assets
Goodwill 10
Other intangible assets 10
Property, plant and equipment 11
Investments in associates and joint ventures 12
Other investments 13
Deferred tax assets 6
Post employment benefits 26
Trade and other receivables 15
Current assets
Inventory 14
Taxation recoverable
Trade and other receivables 15
Other investments 13
Cash and cash equivalents 20
Assets held for sale
Total assets
Equity
Called up share capital 18

Additional paid-in capital
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31 March
2014
£m

23,315
23,373
22,851
114
3,553
20,607
35
3,270
97,118

441
808
8,886
4,419
10,134
34
24,722
121,840

3,792
116,973

Restated!
31 March
2013

£m

24,390
19,749
17,584
46,447
773
2,848
52
4,832

116,675

353
397
8,018
5,350
7,531

21,649
138,324

3,866
154,279

Restated!
1 April
2012
£m

27816
18,762
16,008
47,682
790
1,894
31
3,436

116,419

375
275
10,007
1,323
7,051

19,031
135,450

3,866
154,123
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Treasury shares (7,187) (9,029) (7,841)
Accumulated losses (51,428) (88,834) (84,217)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 8,052 11,195 11,004
Total equity shareholders funds 70,802 71,477 76,935
Non-controlling interests 1,733 1,890 2,090
Put options over non-controlling interests (754) (879) (823)
Total non-controlling interests 979 1,011 1,267
Total equity 71,781 72,488 78,202
Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 21 21,454 27,904 26,882
Taxation liabilities 50 150 250
Deferred tax liabilities 6 747 6,671 6,572
Post employment benefits 26 584 580 292
Provisions 17 846 855 448
Trade and other payables 16 1,339 1,307 1,181

25,020 37,467 35,625
Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 21 7,747 11,800 6,232
Taxation liabilities 873 1,922 1,888
Provisions 17 963 715 571
Trade and other payables 16 15,456 13,932 12,932

25,039 28,369 21,623
Total equity and liabilities 121,840 138,324 135,450
Note:

1 Restated for the adoption of IFRS 11 and amendments to IAS 19. See note 1 Basis of preparation for further details.
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authorised for issue on 20 May
2014 and were signed on its behalf by:

/s/ Vittorio Colao /s/ Nick Read
Vittorio Colao Nick Read
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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The consolidated statement of financial position shows all of our assets and liabilities at 31 March.

Further details on the major movements of both our assets and liabilities in the year are set out below. Our statement
of financial position has been materially impacted in the year by the sale of our interest in Verizon Wireless, the
acquisition of Kabel Deutschland and the assumption of control over Vodafone Italy (jointly the Group s acquisitions ):

Assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets

Our total intangible assets increased to £46.7 billion from £44.1 billion. The increase primarily arose as a result of
£11.5 billion additions as a result of the Group s acquisitions and other additions of £3.7 billion, including £1.9 billion
of spectrum acquired in India, partially offset by £6.6 billion of goodwill impairments, reductions of £2.6 billion as a
result of unfavourable movements in foreign exchange rates and £3.5 billion of amortisation.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased to £22.9 billion from £17.6 billion, principally as a result of £6.4 billion
additions in the year arising from Group acquisitions and a further £4.9 billion of purchases, partially offset by £4.0
billion of depreciation charges and £1.5 billion of adverse foreign exchange movements.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

Investments in associates and joint ventures decreased to £0.1 billion (2013: £46.4 billion), primarily reflecting a
reduction of £43.2 billion on the disposal of the Group s investment in Verizon Wireless and the transition of
Vodafone Italy from a joint venture to a fully consolidated subsidiary. Our share of the trading results of associates
and joint ventures was £3.5 billion, including £3.2 billion from Verizon Wireless classified within discontinued
operations.

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets increased by £19.0 billion to £27.5 billion, mainly due to a £17.8 billion increase in

recognised deferred tax assets, primarily in respect of additional tax losses in Germany and Luxembourg (see note 6
Taxation for further details), and an increase of £2.8 billion in other investments as a result of loan notes received in

respect of the disposal of the Group s investment in Verizon Wireless, partly offset by a £1.6 billion reduction in

receivables, which was primarily due to a reduction in amounts due from associates.

Total equity and liabilities
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Total equity

Total equity decreased by £0.7 billion to £71.8 billion. Total comprehensive income for the year of £56.7 billion was
offset by the return of value to shareholders of £51.0 billion and other dividends paid to equity shareholders and
non-controlling interests of £5.1 billion.

Borrowings

Total borrowings decreased to £29.2 billion from £39.7 billion, primarily as the result of the redemption of US$5.65
billion of bonds following the sale of our interest in Verizon Wireless and also due to £2.7 billion favourable foreign
exchange movements. A net debt reconciliation is provided on page 103.

Deferred taxation liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities reduced to £0.7 billion from £6.7 billion mainly due to the disposal of the US Group that held
substantial deferred tax liabilities to Verizon Communications.

Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities increased to £16.4 billion (2013: £14.6 billion). Trade payables at 31 March 2014 were
equivalent to 40 days (2013:37 days) outstanding, calculated by reference to the amount owed to suppliers as a
proportion of the amounts invoiced by suppliers during the year. It is our policy to agree terms of transactions,
including payment terms, with suppliers and it is our normal practice that payment is made accordingly.

Contractual obligations and contingencies

A summary of our principal contractual financial obligations is shown below and details of the Group s contingent
liabilities are included in note 30 Contingent liabilities .

Payments due by period

£m
Contractual obligations! Total <lyear 1 3years 3 Syears >5years
Borrowings? 35,721 8,642 5,506 9,825 11,748
Operating lease commitments3 5,732 1,128 1,519 1,034 2,051
Capital commitments3-4 2,335 2,093 215 20 7
Purchase commitments 4,420 3,426 578 191 225
Total 48,208 15,289 7,818 11,070 14,031

Notes:

1 This table includes commitments in respect of options over interests in Group businesses held by non-controlling
shareholders (see Potential cash outflows from option agreements and similar arrangements on page 146) and
obligations to pay dividends to non-controlling shareholders (see Dividends from associates and to non-controlling
shareholders on page 146). The table excludes current and deferred tax liabilities and obligations under post
employment benefit schemes, details of which are provided in notes 6 Taxation and 26 Post employment benefits
respectively. The table also excludes the contractual obligations of associates and joint ventures.

2 Seenote 21 Borrowings .

See note 29 Commitments .

4 Primarily related to network infrastructure.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the years ended 31 March
Additional
Share
paid-in  Treasury Retained  Currency
capital shares losses reserve
capital?
£m £m £m £m £m
4,082 153,760 (8,171) (77,685) 14,417
2 277 (208)
(216) 216 4,724 (4,724)
(4,671)*
1453
(1,908)
6,948 (4,279)
6,948
(3,629)
31
(681)
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Pensions
reserve

£m

(203)

(263)

(352)
&9

Equity
Other comprehensive income share- N
Investment holders  controll
Revaluation
reserve Other funds intere
surplus
£m £m £m £m
237 1,040 78 87,555
71
4,671)
145
(1,908) 1,
(17) (6) 2,383
6,948
(17) (14) 4,012)
8 128
(681)
205



3,866

3,866

(74)

16,613

(16,613)

154,123

1523

2

154,279

74

(37,470)
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(6,654)
14

(7,841) (84,217)

287 (237)

(1,475)4

(7

413
413

(4,801)
15
(9,029) (88,834)

194 (173)

1,648 (1,648)

20,857

1,115

(1,451)

59,254
59,254
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10,138

462

482
2D

10,600

(2,436)

(466)

(182)

(238)
56

(648)

37

220

(85)

(73)

(12)

135

(119)

1,040

1,040

(6,654)
14

72 76,935

52
(1,475)

152

)
) 604

413
(6) 165

an
(4,801)
17

68 71,477

23

(15,498)

88

(1,451)

(25) 56,711
59,254
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(3,932) 57 (119) 3 (3,991)

3 (20) 3) (20)

1,493 (25) 1,468

(40,566) (40,566)

18 18

3,792 116,973 (7,187) (51,428) 8,164 (611) 16 1,040 43 70,802

Notes:

1 Restated for the adoption of IFRS 11 and amendments to IAS 19. Retained losses have increased and the pensions
reserve losses have reduced by £49 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 and by £33 million for the year ended
31 March 2012. See note 1 Basis of preparation for further details.

2 Includes share premium, capital redemption reserve and merger reserve. The merger reserve was derived from
acquisitions made prior to 31 March 2004 and subsequently allocated to additional paid-in capital on adoption of
IFRS.

3 Includes £12 million tax charge (2013: £18 million credit; 2012: £2 million credit).

4 Amount for 2013 includes a commitment for the purchase of own shares of £1,026 million; 2012: £1,091 million).
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of changes in equity

The consolidated statement of changes in equity shows the movements in equity shareholders funds and
non-controlling interests. Equity shareholders funds decreased by £0.7 billion as the profits on the sale of our
investment in Verizon Wireless ( VZW ) and from the recognition of a large deferred tax asset were offset by the return
of value to shareholders, regular ordinary dividends and goodwill impairment charges.

The major movements in the year are described below:

Redemption and cancellation of shares

We cancelled 1 billion ordinary shares that had been repurchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.
Purchase of own shares

We initiated a £1.5 billion share buyback programme following the receipt of a US$3.8 billion (£2.4 billion) income
dividend from VZW in December 2012. Under this programme, which was completed in June 2013, the Group placed
irrevocable purchase instructions with a third party in the prior year to enable shares to be repurchased on our behalf
when we may otherwise have been prohibited from buying in the market. This led to a total of 552,050 purchased

shares being settled in the current year at an average price per share, including transaction costs, of 189 pence.

The movement in treasury shares during the year is shown below:

Number

Million £m
1 April 2013 4,902 9,029
Reissue of shares (104) (194)
Receipt of shares re-purchased in prior year 552
Cancellation of shares (1,000) (1,648)
Share consolidation (1,978)
31 March 2014 2,372 7,187

The reissue of shares in the year was to satisfy obligations under employee share schemes.

Issue of B and C shares
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On 2 September 2013 Vodafone announced that it had reached agreement to dispose of its US Group whose principal
asset was its 45% interest in Verizon Wireless for a total consideration of US$130 billion (£79 billion).

Following completion on 21 February 2014, Vodafone shareholders received all of the Verizon shares and US$23.9
billion (£14.3 billion) of cash (the Return of Value ) totalling US$85.2 billion (£51.0 billion).

The Return of Value was carried out through a B share and C share scheme. Eligible shareholders were able to elect
between receiving one B share or one C share for each ordinary share that they held.

The B shares were cancelled by Vodafone in return for cash and Verizon shares with a value no greater than the
aggregate nominal value of the B shares.

Holders of the C shares received a special dividend on their C shares, consisting of cash and Verizon shares with an
aggregate value, for each C share, equal to the aggregate value of cash payable and Verizon shares receivable on the
cancellation of each B share. The special B share distribution and C share dividend of £35.5 billion is included within
the £40.6 billion of dividends described paid to equity shareholders in the year.

Transactions with non-controlling stakeholders in subsidiaries

During the year we acquired further non-controlling interests in Vodafone India Limited and commenced the legal
process of acquiring the remaining shares in Kabel Deutschland.

Comprehensive income

The Group generated £56.7 billion of total comprehensive income in the year, primarily a result of the profit for the

year attributable to equity shareholders of £59.3 billion. Total comprehensive income increased by £56.0 billion

compared to the previous year; the primary reason underlying the increase being the profit realised on the disposal of

our investment in VZW of £45.0 billion and the profit arising from the recognition of significant deferred tax assets of

£19.3 billion in relation to losses incurred in Germany and Luxembourg (further details are provided in note 6
Taxation to the consolidated financial statements).

Dividends

Dividends of £40.6 billion include the special £35.5 billion B share distribution and C share dividends distributed as
part of the Return of Value to shareholders and £5.1 billion of equity dividends.

We provide returns to shareholders through equity dividends and historically have generally paid dividends in
February and August in each year. The directors expect that we will continue to pay dividends semi-annually.

The £5.1 billion equity dividend in the current year comprises £3.4 billion in relation to the final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2013 and £1.7 billion for the interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014. This has increased
from total dividends of £4.8 billion in the prior year, with increases in the dividend per share more than offsetting
reductions in the number of shares in issue.

The interim dividend of 3.53 pence per share announced by the directors in November 2013 represented an 8%
increase over last year s interim dividend. The directors are proposing a final dividend of 7.47 pence per share. Total
dividends for the year, excluding the Return of Value in relation to the VZW disposal increased by 8% to 11.00 pence
per share.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the years ended 31 March

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of interests in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired
Other investing activities in relation to purchase of subsidiaries
Purchase of interests in associates and joint ventures
Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments

Disposal of interests in subsidiaries, net of cash disposed
Disposal of interests in associates and joint ventures
Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Disposal of investments

Dividends received from associates and joint ventures
Dividends received from investments

Interest received

Taxation on investing activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of ordinary share capital and reissue of treasury shares
Net movement in short-term borrowings

Proceeds from issue of long-term borrowings

Repayment of borrowing

Purchase of treasury shares
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Note
19

28

2014

£m
6,227

(4,279)

(1)
(2,327)
(4,396)

(214)

34,919
79
1,483
4,897
10

582

30,743

38
(2,887)
1,060
(9,788)
(1,033)

Restated!
2013

£m
8,824

(1,432)

(6)
(3,758)
(3,958)
(4,249)

27

105
1,523
5,539

2

461

(5,746)

69
1,581
5422

(1,720)
(1,568)

Restated!
2012

£m
10,297

(149)
310
(5)
(1,876)
4,071)
417)
784
6,799
91
66
4,916
3
336
(206)
6,581

91
1,517
1,578

(3,424)
(3,583)
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B and C share payments (14,291)

Equity dividends paid (5,076) (4,806) (6,643)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries (264) (379) (304)
Other transactions with non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries (111) 15 (2,605)
Other movements in loans with associates and joint ventures 168 (792)
Interest paid (1,897) (1,525) (1,504)
Net cash flow from financing activities (34,249) (2,743) (15,669)
Net cash flow 2,721 335 1,209

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 20 7,506 7,001 6,138

Exchange (loss)/gain on cash and cash equivalents (115) 170 (346)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 20 10,112 7,506 7,001

During the year ended 31 March 2014 there were a number of material non-cash investing and financing activities that
arose in relation to both the disposal of our interest in Verizon Wireless, the acquisition of the remaining 23% of
Vodafone Italy and the return of value to shareholders. Full details of these material non-cash transactions are
included in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Note:

1 Restated for the adoption of IFRS 11 and amendments to IAS 19. See note 1 Basis of preparation for further details.
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The consolidated statement of cash flows shows the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for
the year. Closing net debt has reduced to £13.7 billion from £25.4 billion. The reduction has primarily been achieved
as the result of cash retained from the sale of our interest in Verizon Wireless after the return of value to shareholders.
Our liquidity and working capital may be affected by a material decrease in cash flow due to a number of factors as
outlined in Principal risk factors and uncertainties on pages 196 to 200. We do not use non-consolidated special
purpose entities as a source of liquidity or for other financing purposes.

Purchase of interests in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired

During the year we acquired Kabel Deutschland for net cash consideration of £4.3 billion. Further details on the assets
and liabilities acquired are outlined in note 28 Acquisitions and disposals .

Purchase of intangible assets

Cash payments for the purchase of intangible assets comprise £1.4 billion for purchases of computer software and
£0.9 billion for acquired spectrum.

Purchase of investments
The Group purchases short-term investments as part of its treasury strategy. See note 13 Other investments .
Disposal of interests in associates and joint ventures

During the year, we disposed of our US Group whose principal asset was its 45% interest in Verizon Wireless for
consideration which included net cash proceeds of £34.9 billion. There were no significant disposals in the prior year.

Disposal of investments

In the prior year we received the remaining consideration of £1.5 billion from the disposal of our interests in SoftBank
Mobile Corp.

Dividends received from joint ventures and associates

Dividends received from associates reduced by 11.6% to £4.9 billion. Dividends received primarily comprise tax
dividends and income dividends from Verizon Wireless of £4.8 billion in both the current and prior financial years.

Movements in borrowings
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Funds retained from the sale of our interest in Verizon Wireless, after the return of value to shareholders, has enabled
us to reduce the overall amount of the Group s borrowings.

Purchase of treasury shares

Cash payments of £1.0 billion relate to the completion of a £1.5 billion share buyback programme that commenced
following the receipt of a US$3.8 billion (£2.4 billion) income dividend from VZW in December 2012. Further details
are provided on page 101.

B and C share payments

B share payments formed part of the return of value to shareholders following the disposal of the Group s interest in
Verizon Wireless. Further details are provided on page 101.

Equity dividends paid

Equity dividends paid during the year increased by 5.6%. A special dividend was paid during the year to 31 March
2012 following the receipt of an income dividend from VZW. Further details on the Group s dividends are provided on
page 101.

Other transactions with non-controlling shareholders in subsidiaries

During the year we acquired the non-controlling interests in Vodafone India Limited and commenced the legal
process of acquiring the remaining shares in Kabel Deutschland.

The financial commentary on this page is unaudited.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. Basis of preparation

This section describes the critical accounting judgements that management has identified as having a potentially
material impact on the Group s consolidated financial statements and sets out our significant accounting policies that
relate to the financial statements as a whole. Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific note to
the accounts, the policy is described within that note. We have also detailed below the new accounting
pronouncements that we will adopt in future years and our current view of the impact they will have on our financial
reporting.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and are also prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the European Union ( EU ), the Companies
Act 2006 and Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulations. The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
A discussion on the Group s critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty is detailed
below. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements are stated in pounds sterling.

Vodafone Group Plc is registered in England and Wales (No. 1833679).

IFRS requires the directors to adopt accounting policies that are the most appropriate to the Group s circumstances. In
determining and applying accounting policies, directors and management are required to make judgements in respect
of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect

the Group s reported financial position, results or cash flows; it may later be determined that a different choice may
have been more appropriate.
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Management has identified accounting estimates and assumptions relating to revenue, taxation, business combinations
and goodwill, joint arrangements, finite lived intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, post employment
benefits, provisions and contingent liabilities and impairment that it considers to be critical due to their impact on the
Group s financial statements. These critical accounting judgements, assumptions and related disclosures have been
discussed with the Company s Audit and Risk Committee (see page 62).

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Revenue recognition
Arrangements with multiple deliverables

In revenue arrangements where more than one good or service is provided to the customer, customer consideration is
allocated between the goods and services using relative fair value principles. The fair values determined for
deliverables may impact the timing of the recognition of revenue. Determining the fair value of each deliverable can
require complex estimates. The Group generally determines the fair value of individual elements based on prices at
which the deliverable is regularly sold on a standalone basis after considering volume discounts where appropriate.

Gross versus net presentation

When the Group sells goods or services as a principal, income and payments to suppliers are reported on a gross basis
in revenue and operating costs. If the Group sells goods or services as an agent, revenue and payments to suppliers are
recorded in revenue on a net basis, representing the margin earned.

Whether the Group is considered to be the principal or an agent in the transaction depends on analysis by management
of both the legal form and substance of the agreement between the Group and its business partners; such judgements
impact the amount of reported revenue and operating expenses but do not impact reported assets, liabilities or cash
flows.

Taxation

The Group s tax charge on ordinary activities is the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges. The calculation
of the Group s total tax charge involves estimation and judgement in respect of certain matters where the tax impact is
uncertain until a conclusion is reached with the relevant tax authority or through a legal process. The final resolution
of some of these items may give rise to material profits, losses and/or cash flows.

Resolving tax issues can take many years as it is not always within the control of the Group and often depends on the
efficiency of legal processes in the relevant tax jurisdiction.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of deferred tax assets is based upon whether it is more likely than not that there will be sufficient and
suitable taxable profits in the relevant legal entity or tax group against which to utilise the assets in the future.
Judgement is required when determining probable future taxable profits, which are estimated using the latest available
profit forecasts. Prior to recording deferred tax assets for tax losses, relevant tax law is considered to determine the
availability of the losses to offset against the future taxable profits.

Significant items on which the Group has exercised accounting estimation and judgement include the recognition of
deferred tax assets in respect of losses in Luxembourg, Germany, India, and Turkey, capital allowances in the United
Kingdom and the tax liability on the rationalisation and re-organisation of the Group prior to the disposal of our US

group, whose principal asset was its 45% interest in Verizon Wireless ( VZW ). See note 6 Taxation to the consolidated
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Business combinations and goodwill

When a business combination occurs, the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed, including
intangible assets, are recognised. The determination of the fair values of acquired assets and liabilities is based, to a
considerable extent, on management s judgement. If the purchase consideration exceeds the fair value of the net assets
acquired then the difference is recognised as goodwill. If the purchase price consideration is lower than the fair value
of the assets acquired then a gain is recognised in the income statement.

Allocation of the purchase price between finite lived assets (discussed below) and indefinite lived assets such as
goodwill affects the results of the Group as finite lived intangible assets are amortised, whereas indefinite lived
intangible assets, including goodwill, are not amortised.

On transition to IFRS the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3, Business combinations , retrospectively as the difficulty
in applying these requirements to business combinations completed by the Group from incorporation through to

1 April 2004 exceeded any potential benefits. Goodwill arising before the date of transition to IFRS amounted to
£78,753 million.

If the Group had elected to apply the accounting for business combinations retrospectively it may have led to an
increase or decrease in goodwill, licences, customer bases, brands and related deferred tax liabilities recognised on
acquisition.

Joint arrangements

The Group participates in a number of joint arrangements where control of the arrangement is shared with one or more
other parties. A joint arrangement is classified as a joint operation or as a joint venture, depending on management s
assessment of the legal form and substance of the arrangement.

The classification can have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. The Group s share of assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenses and cash flows of joint operations are included in the consolidated financial statements
on a line-by-line basis, whereas the Group s investment and share of results of joint ventures are shown within single
line items in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated income statement respectively. See note
12 Investments in associates and joint ventures to the consolidated financial statements.

Finite lived intangible assets

Other intangible assets include amounts spent by the Group acquiring licences and spectrum, customer bases and
brands and the costs of purchasing and developing computer software.
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Where intangible assets are acquired through business combinations and no active market for the assets exists, the fair
value of these assets is determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by the asset. Estimates
relating to the future cash flows and discount rates used may have a material effect on the reported amounts of finite
lived intangible assets.

Estimation of useful life

The useful life over which intangible assets are amortised depends on management s estimate of the period over which
economic benefit will be derived from the asset. Reducing the useful life will increase the amortisation charge in the
consolidated income statement. Useful lives are periodically reviewed to ensure that they remain appropriate. The

basis for determining the useful life for the most significant categories of intangible assets is discussed below.

Licences and spectrum fees

The estimated useful life is generally the term of the licence unless there is a presumption of renewal at negligible
cost; this is adjusted if necessary, for example taking into account the impact of any expected changes in technology.

Customer bases

The estimated useful life principally reflects management s view of the average economic life of the customer base and
is assessed by reference to customer churn rates. An increase in churn rates may lead to a reduction in the estimated
useful life and an increase in the amortisation charge.

Capitalised software

For computer software, the useful life is based on management s view, considering historical experience with similar
products as well as anticipation of future events which may impact their life such as changes in technology. The useful
life will not exceed the duration of a licence.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represents 18.8% (2013: 12.7%) of the Group s total assets; estimates and assumptions
made may have a material impact on their carrying value and related depreciation charge. See note 11 Property, plant
and equipment for further details.

Estimation of useful life

The depreciation charge for an asset is derived using estimates of its expected useful life and expected residual value,
which are reviewed annually. Increasing an asset s expected life or residual value would result in a reduced
depreciation charge in the consolidated income statement.

Management determines the useful lives and residual values for assets when they are acquired, based on experience
with similar assets and taking into account other relevant factors such as any expected changes in technology. The
useful life of network infrastructure is assumed not to exceed the duration of related operating licences unless there is
a reasonable expectation of renewal or an alternative future use for the asset.

Post employment benefits
Management judgement is exercised when determining the Group s liabilities and expenses arising for defined benefit
pension schemes. Management is required to make assumptions regarding future rates of inflation, salary increases,

discount rates and longevity of members, each of which may have a material impact on the defined benefit obligations
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that are recorded. Sensitivity analysis is provided for these assumptions in note 26 Post employment benefits to the
consolidated financial statements.
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